
AGENDA
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

AUGUST 20, 2019 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 

A. ROLL CALL:
1. Roll call of all City Commissioners.
2. Introduction of the new MPD K9 dog and his handler, Officer Scott

Warzecha.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

C. MINUTES:
1. Consider approval of the minutes from the August 6, 2019 Board of

City Commission regular meeting.

D. PUBLIC HEARING:
1. First consideration of Ordinance 1320 related to crematoriums
2. Preliminary/final plat and first consideration of Ordinance 1321

related to a zoning district amendment for proposed Midway
Fourteenth Addition First Replat

3. Consider variance for Lot 3, Block 1, Midway 14th Addition to the
required setback based on tower height

4. First consideration of Ordinance 1322 related to a zoning district
amendment for select lots in Scott’s Acres (Proposed Engage
Addition)

5. Consider approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1323
related to a zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for
Meadow Ridge 4th Addition

6. Consider approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1324
related to a zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for
Meadow Ridge 5th Addition

E. BIDS:
1. Consider the award of the bid for the demolition of the structure at

210 5th St NW to Boehm Construction and Spray Foam (Award by
Resolution).

F. CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Consider approval of monthly bills
2. Consider approval of a renewal Class E liquor license at the

Harvest Catering & Events located at 308 W. Main. Street.
3. Consider approval of an extension of the closing date for the sale of

100 5th St. NW.

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


 Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

August 20, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 

4. Consider amending 2019 Municipal Court budget.
5. Consider formal acceptance of the Bank of North Dakota 

Infrastructure Loan for the Southside Street Improvement 
project.

6. Consider approval of the Special Event Permit for the Mandan 
Golden Age Club Car Show.

7. Consider approval of the Mandan Parking Authority Board’s 
recommendations for expansion of the 90 minute parking zones.

8. Consider approval of Change Order G-02 to the Mandan 30” 
Sunset Reservoir Transmission Line Improvements project. 
 

G. OLD BUSINESS:
1. Consider a variance to our driveway width standards at 4200 

Lakewood Drive SE.

H. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Consider Exemption Application of James B Mellon, Midway Lanes 

INC., 3327 Memorial Hwy.
2. Consider a driveway variance for 1401 Action Drive SE.
3. Consider approval of negotiating with Moore Engineering for 

Engineering Services related to the Mid-Town East Street 
Improvement District (SID 215).

4. Consider selection of Architect firm for Morton Mandan Public 
Library and Downtown Parks Project

I. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:
1. Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1317 to amend and re-

enact Section 18-1-7 and Section 18-1-8 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances relating to the possession of marijuana and drug 
paraphernalia.

2. Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1318 to create Section
6-3-1 of   Article 6 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to 
animals on city owned property.

3. Consider Resolution restricting dogs, cats, or domesticated animals 
on city property at Dykshoorn Park and Heritage Plaza.

4. Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1319 to amend and re-
enact Section 24-7-17 and Section 24-7-18 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances relating to parking of certain vehicles and unattached 
trailers and restrictions on consecutive parking.

5. First Consideration of Ordinance 1325 to amend and re-enact 
Sections 4 and 5 of Sec. 24-12-8 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances relating to violation for not carrying liability insurance.

J. OTHER BUSINESS: 



Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

August 20, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 

K. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS:
 1. September 3, 2019 (5 p.m. start time)
 2. September 17, 2019
 3. October 1, 2019

L. ADJOURN



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 1 of 11 
The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on August 6, 2019 in the Ed 
“Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.  Vice-Chairman of the Board, 
Commissioner Rohr called the meeting to order.   

A. ROLL CALL:
1. Roll Call of All City Commissioners.  Present were Commissioners Braun, Davis, Rohr
and Larson. Department Heads present were, Finance Director Welch, Fire Chief Nardello,
Building Official Ouradnik, Deputy Chief Flaten, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth,
Principal Planner Van Dyke, Assessor Markley, Business Development and Communications
Director Huber, Human Resource Director Cullen, Police Chief Ziegler and City Administrator
Neubauer and Attorney Brown. Absent:  Mayor Helbling and Director of Public Works Bitz.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Agenda
Commissioner Larson seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commis-
sioner Davis: Yes.  Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:
Absent.  The motion passed.

C. MINUTES:
1. Consider approval of the minutes from the July 16, 2019 Board of City Commission regu-
lar meeting. Commissioner Larson moved to approve the minutes as presented.   Commissioner
Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis:
Yes.  Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Absent.  The
motion passed.

D. PUBLIC HEARING:

E. BIDS:
1. Request permission from the Street Department to advertise for private contractor rates
for heavy equipment and operators.  Administrator Neubauer presented this item in the absence
of Director of Public Works Bitz.  This is a request to allow city staff to advertise for private
contractor rates for heavy equipment and operators, to assist in hauling snow in the winter.
City staff has utilized private contractors for snow hauling efforts.  He said the preference is to
solicit bids for snow hauling operations however it is beneficial to establish rates for other heavy
equipment costs. The contractors were asked to provide rates valid for a one year period, howev-
er there is an allowance for a winter rate as well as a summer rate as many of the contractors are
more readily available during the winter months.

Commissioner Larson moved to approve staff advertising for bids related to contingency heavy 
equipment rates for the City of Mandan. Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call 
vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Com-
missioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Absent.  The motion passed.   

F. CONSENT AGENDA
1. Consider approval of allowing Missouri West water service to property within our city
extraterritorial limits.



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 2 of 11 
2.        Consider proclaiming September 23-28, 2019 as Free Fall Landfill Week in the City of 
Mandan. 
3.        Consider abatement of 2018 assessment for Leon Samuel. 
4.        Consider approval of the Memorial Highway Preliminary Reimbursement Agreement. 
6.        Consider approval of a Special Event Permit for Mandan Progress Organization Main 
Event on August 9, 2019. 
 
Commissioner Larson requested No. 5 be removed for discussion.  
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Consent Agenda items No. 1-4 and No. 6 as present-
ed.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Com-
missioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  
Absent.  The motion passed.   
 
5.        Consider approval of a Special Event Permit for Silver Dollar Bar street dance, beer gar-
den and Dakota Riders Bike Show on August 17, 2019. Commissioner Larson stated that under 
Section 6 of the application, the question:  Have the alcohol servers received training in the 
sale/service of alcoholic beverages?  She pointed out that the answer “No” was checked.   She 
requested clarifying this to make sure that item is answered appropriately and it is taken care of 
before approval of the request is given.  Deputy Police Chief Flaten responded that the Police 
Department offers training and some businesses take advantage of that training offer and some 
businesses do not.  The Siler Dollar Bar currently has a lot of new staff and many of them have 
not been through the training program.  The training is recommended but is not a requirement.   
 
Commissioner Larson moved to approve the request for a Special Event Permit for Silver Dollar 
Bar street dance, beer garden and Dakota Riders Bike Show on August 17, 2019. Commissioner 
Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: 
Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Absent.  The 
motion passed.   
 
G.        OLD BUSINESS: 
 
H.        NEW BUSINESS 
1.         Consider the Morton Mandan Public Library 2020 Budget. Public Library Director 
Hawes presented the Morton Mandan Public Library 2020 Budget that has been recommended 
for approval by the Library Board of Trustees.  The Morton Mandan Public Library serves all 
citizens of Morton County and the City of Mandan and is governed by a Board of Trustees, who 
are appointed by the County and City Commission Boards. The Library is fiscally dependent up-
on the County and the City because the County Commission and the City Commission consider 
the Library budget, levies taxes and must approve any debt issuances. The Library is reported as 
a component unit in the City of Mandan audited financial statements. The City currently owns 
the Library building.  Director Hawes presented a presentation of the statistics of library use 
along with events and actions of the library that have occurred over the last year.   
 
Director Hawes said that the Library Board of Trustees approved the 2020 Budget at their meet-
ing held on June 24, 2019 and it was presented and approved by the Morton County Commission 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 3 of 11 
on July 11, 2019.  The City of Mandan will levy 5.50 Mills or approximately $528,822 as re-
quested by the Library Board of Trustees for the 2020 Budget. The City also provides $10,650 
annually to the Library for their share of State Aid Distribution revenue from the State of North 
Dakota. Director Hawes reported that the 2006 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between 
the Morton County Public Library and Mandan Public Library, the funding formula from each 
entity for the Library budget is to be "based on population statistics" and "if in the future the 
population statistics shift, the future board would then determine the most equitable formula." At 
the time the MOU was approved, the contribution formula was "2/3 city and 1/3 county since the 
City of Mandan is approximately 2/3 of the population of Morton County.” 
 
Director Hawes stated that the Library 2020 Budget reflects the following funding contributions 
from each entity: Morton County $218,856 or 28%; City of Mandan $574,142 or 72% which 
equals a total of $792,998 or 100%.  The report showed about a 10% increase over last year’s 
budget.  She recommended approval of the 2020 Budget as presented.   
 
Commissioner Larson moved to approve the Morton Mandan Public Library 2020 Budget as 
recommended by the Library Board of Trustees.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion. 
Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  
Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Absent.  The motion passed. 
 
2.         Consider the Mandan Airport Authority 2020 Budget. On behalf of the Airport Board  
Mr. R.D. Reimers presented a request to approve the Mandan Airport Authority 2020 Budget as 
recommended by the Airport Board.  Mr. Reimers provided a power point presentation of the 
major community projects and engagement events that occurred over the last year at the airport.  
He explained that the Mandan Airport Authority manages the airport economic activity from all 
over the region and that activities have increased over the last several years.  The Airport  
5-member Board is appointed by the City Commission. The airport is fiscally dependent upon 
the City because the City Commission levies taxes and must approve any debt issuances. The 
airport is reported as a component unit in the City of Mandan audited financial statements.  A 
summary of the 2020 Budget was presented.  Net operating expenses = $328,117; net capital 
project inflows/outflows = $1,570,000; Net financing inflows/outflows = $452,750; Net budget 
cash flow is $789,333.  The Hanger Project and Taxilane/Apron projects were reviewed.  Addi-
tional state funding for these projects is expected to be awarded in 2020 to offset the expenses.  
He reported that the Airport Board approved the 2020 Budget at their recent meeting held on Ju-
ly 15, 2019. The City of Mandan will levy the maximum of 4 Mills or approximately $384,596 
as requested by the Airport Board for the 2020 Budget. The City also provides $5,600 annually 
to the Airport for their share of State Aid Distribution revenue from the State of N.D.  
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Mandan Airport Authority 2020 Budget as recom-
mended by the Airport Board.  Commissioner Larson seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commission-
er Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Absent.  The motion passed. 
 
3.         Consider a variance to our driveway width standards at 4200 Lakewood Drive SE. 
Planning and Engineering Director Froseth reported that the Planning and Engineering office re-
ceived a variance request to allow two driveways at this residential property whose sum exceeds 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 4 of 11 
the maximum allowable width of 36-feet. The following excerpt outlines the request and was 
compared to City Code language for consideration:  
 
Subsection (5) of section 115-5-4 of the Mandan municipal code states: 
“(5) Residential lots. Each lot may have one or two driveways. The combined total width of the 
driveway or driveways shall be no greater than 36 feet, plus any required flares, measured at the 
curb line. If there are two driveways, they must be separated by a distance of at least twenty-four 
feet measured at the curb line. If there is a fire hydrant located between the driveways, the twen-
ty-four feet shall be measured from the fire hydrant to the edge of a driveway apron not counting 
any required apron flare. Except for properties with adjoining driveways that are built up to the 
property line, the driveway apron must be placed a distance from the property line sufficient to 
allow for construction of a flare.”  Director Froseth reviewed the variance requirements under 
section 105-1-12 of City Code and City staff comments are noted under each in italics: 
VARIANCES 
      (i)  On appeal from an order, requirement, decision or determination made by an administra-
tive official, the Board of Adjustment may vary or adjust the strict application of any of the re-
quirements of this chapter in the case of an exceptionally irregular, narrow, shallow or steep lot 
or other exceptional physical or topographical condition, by reason of which the strict application 
of the provisions of the chapter would result in unnecessary hardship that would deprive the 
owner of a reasonable use of the land or building involved, but in no other case. 
      (ii) No adjustment in the strict application of any provisions of this chapter shall be granted 
by the Board of Adjustment unless it finds that: 
1.      There are special circumstances or conditions fully described in the findings of the Board, 
applying to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought, which circumstances or condi-
tions are peculiar to such land or building and do not apply generally to land or buildings in the 
neighborhood and have not resulted from any act of the applicant taken subsequent to the adop-
tion of this chapter, whether in violation of the provisions of the chapter, or not. 
 
Building on the west side of the existing garage on the western side of the lot is not an option be-
cause of a storm sewer easement and the storm sewer pipe that resides underground and within 
that easement. In the Lakewood area, there may be 10-20 such easements within a couple hun-
dred lots but they are not common.  If not for that storm sewer, the applicant has stated that they 
would have built on the west side and made use of the existing driveway. 
 
2.       For reasons set forth in the findings of the Board the circumstances or conditions found are 
such that the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the applicant of the 
reasonable use of said land or building and the granting of the variance is necessary for the rea-
sonable use of the land or building, and that the variance as granted by the board is the minimum 
variance that will accomplish the relief sought by the applicant. 
 
The City Engineer’s Office does not believe that the strict application of the driveway dimen-
sional rules would deprive the applicant reasonable use of the property. However, the City Engi-
neer’s Office concedes that this is a subjective criteria check and would invite the applicant to 
speak on the hardship they would endure if not granted. 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 5 of 11 
3.       The granting of the variance would be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
this chapter and not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public wel-
fare.  This would pertain to snow removal wherein there would be less area to put snow.  
 
The City Engineer’s Office does not believe this request to be in harmony with the general pur-
pose of the rules relating to allowable driveway dimensions. It would limit the city’s ability to 
put snow in the boulevard, the main intent of the driveway width rules. That concern is mitigated 
by the width of the lot. The City Engineer’s Office does not see the granting of the variance to be 
injurious or detrimental to the public. 
 
In conclusion, Director Froseth stated that the Planning and Engineering Office finds that this 
request does not meet the criteria needed to grant a variance. In particular, it would be appropri-
ate for the applicant to speak of the hardship if not granted, however the City Engineering De-
partment cannot fully and accurately express that component. 
 
Director Froseth recommended denying the variance request because the denial does not result in 
“…unnecessary hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the land or 
building…”, however there is not as much concern with provisions No. 1 and No.2.  He suggest-
ed the applicant come forward to speak.  John Sauber, Jr, came forward to speak on behalf of his 
parents, John Sr. and Katherine who are requesting this variance.  He said that Director Froseth 
explained No. 1 and No. 3 accurately.  He spoke to the hardship and the use of the property if 
this variance is not granted.  The request is for a garage for the storage of an RV to keep it out of 
the elements.  The Sauber’s believe there is enough room to build the garage and the request out-
lines a reasonable use for the property.  Commissioner Rohr inquired if the proposed garage 
would be for seasonable use only?  Mr. Sauber replied that the RV leaves in October and comes 
in April.  Commissioner Rohr indicated if the snow removal is an issue, can the driveway be 
piled with snow during those months?  Commissioner Larson stated that she had a similar situa-
tion she dealt with recently and she agreed that Commissioner Rohr said that this should not be a 
hindrance for snow removal.  She does not see an issue approving the variance as requested.  
Commissioner Davis inquired if there was a covenant that would be applicable to Lakewood As-
sociation?  Mr. Sauber said there is a Lakewood Association covenant group.  It was recom-
mended that this matter be discussed with the Lakewood Association to ensure there are no regu-
lations prohibiting the variance or construction that will take place.  John Sauber Sr. came to the 
podium.  He explained that he believes the variance request is within the regulations of the 
Lakewood Association covenants but said he will check it out.  Scott Berger, contractor came 
forward to explain that they did apply for the Architectural Review but they have not heard back 
from them.  He suggested that Lakewood Homeowners Association be contacted.  Commissioner 
Davis suggested tabling this matter until the Sauber’s have time to contact the Lakewood Home-
owners Association.  Administrator Neubauer suggested if the commission is so inclined to ap-
prove the variance request it may contingent upon the outcome of the covenants that may exist in 
that neighborhood.   
 
Attorney Brown commented that he is aware that Lakewood Homeowners Association is an ac-
tive association and if the City Commission approves it with a contingency it will be acted on 
quickly. He stated that is something the Sauber’s should have resolved before bringing the vari-



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 6 of 11 
ance request to the City Commission.  He recommended that from a procedural standpoint ta-
bling this matter would be more appropriate than approving it with a contingency.  
 
Commissioner Davis moved to table the variance for a driveway request at 4200 Lakewood 
Drive Southeast, Mandan, North Dakota until the Lakewood Homeowners Association has had a 
chance to review the request.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Com-
missioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner 
Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Absent.  The motion passed. 
 
I.         RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
1.        First consideration of Ordinance 1317 to amend and re-enact Section 18-1-7 and Section 
18-1-8 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to the possession of marijuana and drug par-
aphernalia.  Attorney Brown stated that this is a request to amend and re-enact Section  
18-1-7 and Section 18-1-8 of Ordinance 1317 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to the 
possession of marijuana and drug paraphernalia.  Police Chief Ziegler explained that this request 
is to align the City Ordinances with City Code with the change in the law that states that one-half 
ounce of marijuana shall be charged as an infraction.   
 
Commissioner Davis moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1317 to amend and 
re-enact Section 18-1-7 and Section 18-1-8 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to the 
possession of marijuana and drug paraphernalia.  Commissioner Larson seconded the motion.  
Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  
Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Absent.  The motion passed. 
 
2.         First consideration of Ordinance 1318 to create Section 6-3-1 of Article 6 of the Mandan 
Code of Ordinances relating to dogs and cats on public property. Administrator Neubauer stated 
that this is a request that was brought by the Mandan Progress Organization wherein there has 
been problems with people bringing dogs and cats to Dykshoorn Park and not picking up after 
them.  This request is to create Ordinance 1318 Section 6-3-1 of Article 6 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances restricting dogs and cats on public property.  It will be a ticket-able offense.    
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1318 to create Sec-
tion 6-3-1 of Article 6 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to dogs and cats on public 
property.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion. Attorney Brown stated that in alignment 
with procedure, there needs to be an adoption of the ordinance as drafted.  He will then prepare 
an amendment to that ordinance for review at the second consideration regarding the ticketing 
part of the ordinance as opposed to it being an infraction.  Subsequently a resolution can be pre-
pared that will specifically refer to Dykshoorn Park as a beginning of the public property where 
dogs and cats will not be permitted. By Resolution other city parks can be included within this 
Ordinance as restricted when referencing public property. The Park and Recreation Department 
has restrictions of this nature in place already. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Com-
missioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: 
Absent.  The motion passed. 
3.         First consideration of Ordinance 1319 to amend and re-enact Section 24-7-17 and Sec-
tion 24-7-18 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to parking of certain vehicles and unat-
tached trailers and restrictions on consecutive parking.  Deputy Police Chief Flaten stated that 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 7 of 11 
this revision was brought forward due to an increasing number of Mandan resident’s complaints 
that have been received by the Police Department over the last several years.  This is a request 
regarding Ordinance 1319 to amend and re-enact Section 24-7-17 and Section 24-7-18 of the 
Mandan Code of Ordinances related to parking of certain vehicles and unattached trailers and 
restrictions on consecutive parking.  The vehicles can be parked in front of the homeowner’s res-
idence only from May 15th to September 15th for 12 hours for loading and unloading purposes. 
Another change within this Ordinance is that the parking fine will be raised to $50 and all other 
fines will be removed. This applies to the parking of certain vehicles and unattached trailers 
as outlined in the Ordinance.   
  
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1319 to amend and 
re-enact Section 24-7-17 and Section 24-7-18 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to 
parking of certain vehicles and unattached trailers and restrictions on consecutive parking. 
Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commis-
sioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: 
Absent.  The motion passed. 
  
4.          Consider the introduction and first consideration, and call for a public hearing of Ordi-
nance No. 1316 making the annual appropriations for expenditures or expenses of the City of 
Mandan, North Dakota, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2020, and ending December 
31, 2020, and making the annual tax levy for the year 2019.  Greg Welch, Finance Director, on 
behalf of the Budget and Finance Committee presented the preliminary 2020 Budget as follows: 
 
The City is required to prepare the annual budget in accordance with the North Dakota Century 
Code. In addition, the City’s Budget Policies and the Board’s annual Budget Working Session 
provide further guidance to the budget development process. The City’s budget is coordinated by 
the Finance Department under the direction of the Budget and Finance Committee with the assis-
tance from Commissioners, Department Managers, Supervisors and staff. The City’s preliminary 
2020 Budget is submitted to the Board as a recommendation from the Committee. 
 
The City’s General Fund is the primary operating fund and accounts for all financial resources 
not accounted for in another fund. The General Fund has 16 departments with separate operating 
budgets. The City’s Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are restrict-
ed or committed to expenditure for specified purposes. The City has 18 separate Special Revenue 
Funds such as the Highway Distribution Fund, Cemetery Fund, 1% City Sales Tax Fund, 0.75% 
City Sales Tax Fund, Mandan Growth Fund, etc… The City’s Debt Service Funds account for 
the accumulation of resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for prin-
cipal and interest. The City has 2 separate Debt Service Funds. The City Visitors’ Promotion 
Capital Construction Fund accounts for the 1% City restaurant and lodging tax for the purchase, 
equipping, improving, construction, maintenance, repair, and acquisition of buildings or property 
consistent with visitor attraction and promotion. The City’s Enterprise Funds account for opera-
tions that are financed primarily through user charges and operated in a manner similar to private 
business enterprises. For instance, the City’s monthly utility (water) bill to customers. The City 
has 3 separate Enterprise funds: 1) Water and Sewer Utility Fund. The City’s Water and Sewer 
Utility Fund has 8 departments with separate operating budgets, 2) Solid Waste Utility Fund, and 
3) Street Light Utility Fund. The City Shop Fund accounts for the purchase of fuel. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 8 of 11 
The total revenues from all Funds = $35.5M and total expenses from all Funds = $32.2M. The 
$3.3M difference between total revenues and total expenses is primarily due to: 1) $2.5M of oil 
and gas production taxes from the State of ND (“Prairie Dog Bill”) to be accounted for in the 
Municipal Infrastructure Fund for the City’s contribution towards street maintenance projects 
and 2) $662K net decrease in debt service as a result of a decrease in debt service payments and 
special assessment collections. 
 
The total revenues of $35.5M from all Funds consist of: utility charges = $11.3M or 32% (utility 
or water bill, landfill, etc…), intergovernmental = $6.7M (federal, state and local governments), 
special assessments = $5.4M (infrastructure projects), property taxes = $4.9M or 14%, 1% & 
0.75% city sales taxes = $4.0M (1% = $2.3M, 0.75% = $1.7M), and other = $3.2M. The total 
expenses of $32.2M from all Funds consist of: salaries and benefits = $11.4M or 36%, debt ser-
vice = $10.1M or 31%, operations and maintenance = $8.1M or 25%, and capital outlay = $2.7M 
or 8%. The General Fund represents $12.8M of total expenses and Utility Funds represent 
$10.6M of total expenses. 
 
The total salaries of $8.0M from all Funds consist of: full time employees = $7.6M and other = 
$414K. 2% salary increase for City staff = $148K. Two new full time employees in the General 
Fund (police department – police officer-detective, street department – mechanic) = $132K in-
cluding benefits. The total benefits of $3.3M from all Funds consist of: health insurance = $2.0M 
or 61%, pension = $640K, social security and medicare = $616K, and other = $58K. 15% in-
crease in health insurance (NDPERS) monthly premiums, effective July 2019 through June 2021 
= $272K. The City will continue to evaluate and review health care plans to manage future costs 
and attempt to offer employees more selective options. The Human Resource Department has 
inquired information on the following Health Care Plans: 1) Sanford Health – the City did re-
ceive a quote and the comparable plans are similar in price, however, the High Deductible Plans 
are where savings are noticeable but that does not factor a potential Heath Savings Account con-
tribution by the City, 2) Blue Cross Blue Shield – the City should receive quote during August, 
3) North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund – the Associated Health Plan was presented to the 
NDIRF Board in June. The NDIRF requested additional information and research before a final 
decision is made, and 4) North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System – the NDPERS 
Board is considering a High Deductible Plan for political subdivisions. The City is waiting for 
the NDPERS Board decision. If approved, political subdivisions will be required to find a Health 
Savings Account Provider. The City will be exploring options for making the monthly premium 
for family health insurance coverage more affordable. The City is waiting for provider options in 
order to compare plans before any changes are considered. The total salaries and benefits of 
$11.4M from all Funds consist of: salaries = $8.0M or 71% and benefits - $3.3M or 29%. 
 
The total operations and maintenance of $8.1M from all Funds consist of: professional fees and 
services = $3.1M or 38%, supplies = $1.1M, repairs = $999K, utilities = $935K, and other 
$2.0M. The total debt service of $10.1M from all Funds consist of: special assessment bonds = 
$6.0M or 60%, revenue bonds = $2.7M or 27%, starion sports complex = $1.1M, and other 
$227K. The total debt service consist of: principal = $7.7M, interest = $2.2M, and service charg-
es/issuance costs = $146K. The total capital outlay of $2.7M from all Funds consist of: Water 
and Sewer Utility Fund = $1.7M, General Fund = $762K, and Other Funds = $212K. The Board 
of City Commissioners were provided with a list of capital outlay items recommended by the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 9 of 11 
Committee. City departments are continuing to develop a long-term equipment replacement plan 
in order to properly address the City’s future capital outlay needs and to establish an Equipment 
Replacement Fund to budget the expenditures for various departments with anticipated or pro-
jected funding sources. The goal for the City is to complete the Equipment Replacement Plan 
before the end of 2019 and then implement an Equipment Replacement Fund for the 2021 Budg-
et. The following 2020 infrastructure projects (not included in capital outlay) will come before 
the Board of City Commissioners in the future: 1) Street Improvement – East of Collins Avenue 
to 4th Avenue NE, 2) Street Improvement – various locations north of Old Red Trail, and 3) Pav-
ing at Public Works Facility. City departments are continuing to update the long-term Capital 
Improvement Plan in order to properly address the City’s future infrastructure projects and to 
match those projects with anticipated or projected funding sources. 
 
The total General Fund revenues of $12.1M consist of: property taxes = $4.6M or 38% (the 
property taxes of $4.6M do not fully fund the operating expenditures of the police department of 
$4.8M and fire department of $1.5M), state aid distribution = $1.8M (30% is shared with the 
Mandan Park District), 1% city sales taxes = $1.4M (property tax reduction = $1.2M or 11.99 
mills, revenue stabilization = $211K), highway tax distribution = $1.2M (street department oper-
ating expenditures), and other = $3.1M. The General Fund revenue increase of $855K consist of 
the following: property taxes = $220K (to pay for two new full time employees = $132K, opera-
tions = $88K), building inspection permits = $106K decrease (due to decline in activity), state 
aid distribution = $331K (according to the ND League of Cities Revenue Projection), and inter-
est = $381K (short-term money market savings and CD investment rates). The total General 
Fund expenditures of $12.8M consist of: salaries and benefits = $8.6M or 67%, operations and 
maintenance = $3.5M, and capital outlay and debt service = $777K. The General Fund expendi-
ture increase of $992K consist of: salaries and benefits = $506K (salaries = $209K – primarily 
due to the 2% salary increase and two new employees, benefits = $296K – primarily due to 
health insurance), operations and maintenance = $321K (Burleigh County = $100K, Mandan 
Park District = $99K, professional fees and services = $78K, and repairs and maintenance = 
$27K), capital lease payments = $203K decrease (street department), and capital outlay = $369K 
(street department). The total General Fund balance of $3.6M consist of: reserved 17% = $2.0M 
(the Government Finance Officers Association recommends, at a minimum, a General Fund Bal-
ance Reserve of no less than two months operating revenues or expenditures. The Fund Balance 
Policy was approved by Board of City Commissioners in subsequent years. The Policy provides 
for economic & financial stability and assists in maintaining the City’s bond rating), police de-
partment = $60K (replacement radios), and unreserved = $1.5M (future one-time expenditures 
such as capital outlay). 
 
The total taxable valuation of $96.1M (projected) for tax year 2019 consist of the following in-
creases: residential = $1.3M or 2.1% (new construction and expired exemptions = 99.3% of in-
crease, existing property = 0.7% of increase), commercial = $1.3M or 4.1%, total = $2.5M or 
$2.6M or 2.7%. Currently, for tax year 2018 (2019 Budget), the City levies 62.58 mills or 24% 
of the total mills of all the Mandan taxing entities combined. Currently, the average city mill levy 
of the 12 largest ND cities (excluding Mandan) = 76.58 Mills or 27%. The total levy of 63.58 
mills or $6.1M for tax year 2019 consist of: General Fund = 50.14 mills or $4.8M, Airport = 4.00 
mills or $385K, Library = 5.5 mills or $528K, and other Funds = 3.95 mills or $379K. The total 
City mill levy will increase by 1 mill for the General Fund. The total property tax increase of 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 10 of 11 
$257K for tax year 2019 consist of: new residential property = $89K, new commercial property 
= $34K, and existing property = $134K. The total property tax increase for tax year 2019 (2020 
Budget) is projected to be $22K less than the total property tax increase for tax year 2018 (2019 
Budget). The total property tax increase of $134K for existing property pays for two new full 
time employees in the General Fund. The total City property tax increase for a residential proper-
ty valued at $275,000 with no valuation increase in the true and full value, excluding special as-
sessments = $12 or 1.5%. The total City property tax increase for a residential property valued at 
$275,000 with a 1% valuation increase in the true and full value, excluding special assessments = 
$20 or 2.5%. 
 
The total increase in the City utility (water) bill for a residential property using 800 cubic feet or 
8 units of water = $1.75 per month or 2.0% or $21 for the year. The increase in the City’s utility 
bill consist of: water and wastewater base charge = $1.55 (raw water intake project), solid waste 
collection and hauling base charge = $0.05 (solid waste collection and hauling services), and sol-
id waste recycling base charge = $0.15 (recycling collection, transportation and processing ser-
vices). 
 
The total annual cost for City services (property taxes and utility bill) for an existing $275,000 
residential property with no valuation increase and using 8 units of water per month, excluding 
special assessments = $1,859 or $33 increase or 1.8%. The total annual cost for City services 
(property taxes and utility bill) for an existing $275,000 residential property with a 1% valuation 
increase and using 8 units of water per month, excluding special assessments = $1,867 or $41 
increase or 2.2%. 
 
On August 7, 2019, the City will provide a copy of the preliminary 2020 budget statement and 
budget hearing date to the Morton County Auditor. By August 31, 2019, the Morton County 
Treasurer will provide a written notice to the owner of each parcel of taxable property the esti-
mated property tax, based on the preliminary 2020 budget statement, and the budget hearing 
date. On September 17, 2019, the City will conduct a public budget hearing at 6:00 p.m. and pass 
the second and final consideration of Ordinance No. 1316 adopting the 2020 Budget and approve 
the Resolutions establishing the rates and charges for services. On September 18, 2019, the City 
will submit a certified copy of the levy as adopted and a certified copy of the final 2020 Budget 
to the Morton County Auditor. The preliminary 2020 Budget will be posted on the City’s website 
at cityofmandan.com. 
 
Commissioner Davis moved to approve the introduction and first consideration, and call for a 
public hearing of Ordinance No. 1316 making the annual appropriations for expenditures or ex-
penses of the City of Mandan, North Dakota, for the fiscal year commencing January 1, 2020, 
and ending December 31, 2020, and making the annual tax levy for the year 2019. Commissioner 
Larson seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: 
Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling: Absent.  The 
motion passed. 
 
J.         OTHER BUSINESS:   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
                                                                                                                Minutes of August 6, 2019 

Page 11 of 11 
1.        Consider moving into executive session pursuant to North Dakota Century Code § 44-04-
19.1(9) and 44-04-19.2(2) to discuss negotiation strategy related to litigation August Kersten, 
Brian Berube and Lonesome Dove, Inc. vs. City of Mandan. 
 
Commissioner Braun motioned to move into executive session at 7:37 p.m. Commissioner Davis 
seconded the motion. Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes Commissioner Davis: Yes;   
Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Absent.  The motion 
passed 
 
K.        ADJOURNMENT: 
Commissioner Larson moved to reconvene in regular session at 8:16 p.m. Commissioner Davis 
seconded the motion. The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 
 
Commissioner Larson motioned to recess the regular meeting at 8:17 pm. Commissioner Davis 
seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 
Commissioner Larson: Absent; Mayor Helbling and Commissioner Braun.  The motion passed.   
 
 
   
James Neubauer 
City Administrator 
 

 Vice-Chairman Dennis Rohr 
Board of City Commissioners 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of first consideration of Ordinance 1320 
related to crematoriums.  

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  An ordinance was recently adopted that would 
restrict crematoriums to within the Mandan Union Cemetery.  The Board of City 
Commissioners directed staff to reevaluate the ordinance as it pertains to crematoriums 
following a request by David Wise.   

Through the process, funeral homes in the area provided comment, several public 
hearings were held, and staff reviewed research and land use standards from other 
communities.  The original staff recommendation is provided in Exhibit 1 and the final 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation can be found in Exhibit 2 for 
reference.   

Staff is providing an alternative recommendation at this time based on many public 
hearings that have occurred on the issue since the original recommendation.  This 
recommendation can be found in Exhibit 3.   

The alternative staff recommendation is constructed to provide protections to existing 
home owners and developments while at the same time not being unnecessarily 
burdensome on the business owner.  Staff is recommending that crematoriums be placed 
in an industrial zoning district with a 50’ setback from the property line.  In addition, a 
350’ setback applies to existing dwellings at the time of building permit issuance.  
Further, staff is recommending that these standards apply to the use and that no special 
use permit be required.  These restrictions should address the issues that arose in 
discussion throughout the many hearings that took place in preceding months.     

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 5, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM 
SUBJECT: First Consideration of Ordinance 1320 Related to 

Crematoriums  

Public Hearing No. 1 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: First Consideration of Ordinance 1320 related to Crematoriums 
Page 2 of 2 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Ordinance - Original Staff Recommendation 
Exhibit 2 – Ordinance - Planning and Zoning Recommendation 
Exhibit 3 – Ordinance - Alternative Staff Recommendation 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  This document, including Ordinance 1320, have been reviewed and 
approved by Attorney Brown.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Engineering and Planning recommend approval of the first 
consideration of Ordinance 1320 as presented in Exhibit 3.   
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1320 as 
presented in Exhibit 3.   
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 1299 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Sec. 101-1-3 and 105-1-5 (e) of the 
Mandan Municipal Code related crematoriums 

WHEREAS, Changes are necessary to remove conflict within the land-use code related 
to cremation-related activities       

WHEREAS, Clarification is required to ensure health and safety and mitigate potential 
negative impacts to nearby resident property values 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 1.  Sec. 101-1-3 is added and reads:   

Insert in Sec. 101-1-3 after the definition for Correctional facility the following: 

Crematorium means the establishment for final disposition of deceased remains, either human or pet, by 
thermal, mechanical, or other dissolution process that reduces remains to bone fragments and is subject to 
the following requirements: 

a. shall not be the primary use, i.e. it must be accessory or ancillary to a related and legally existing
mortuary, funeral home, columbarium, or cemetery use.

Section 2.  Sec. 101-1-3, definition for Funeral home or mortuary, is amended to read: 

Funeral home or mortuary means a facility for the care and custody for the pre-disposition of deceased 
human remains, including the sale of services and merchandise for burial, cremation, and other related 
items, including offices, viewing rooms, chapels, and reception halls for serving the deceased and their 
families. facility for the pre-burial preparation of human cadavers, including facilities for cremation, and 
including other areas for offices, purchase of burial items and services, viewing rooms and areas for the 
conduct of memorial services. 

Section 3.  Sec. 105-1-5 (e) is amended to read: 

Cemetery, Mausoleum, Columbarium, and Crematorium. A cemetery, mausoleum, columbarium or 
crematoriumy may be permitted in an industrial or A district as a special use, provided that: 

(1) No graves shall be located less than 100 feet distant from any property line; 

(2) There shall be a strip at least 75 feet in width adjacent to all boundaries of the cemetery 
landscaped and maintained as a green area; 

EXHIBIT 1 - Draft Ordinance - Staff Recommendation



(3) In any cemetery in which there will be permitted monuments and grave markers rising above the 
surface of the ground, the green area shall include a dense evergreen hedge at least six feet in 
height; and  

(4) No public mausoleum, columbarium, crematory or cemetery chapel shall be erected within 200 
feet of any boundary of the lot or parcel on which it is located. 

(5) No crematorium shall be erected within 300 feet of a property line.  

Section 4.  Sec. 101-1-3 and 105-1-5 (e) is amended and re-enacted. 

________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

________________________ 
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 

First Consideration:  December 4, 2018 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: December 18, 2018 



ORDINANCE NO. 1299 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Sec. 101-1-3 and 105-1-5 (e) of the 
Mandan Municipal Code related crematoriums 

WHEREAS, Changes are necessary to remove conflict within the land-use code related 
to cremation-related activities       

WHEREAS, Clarification is required to ensure health and safety and mitigate potential 
negative impacts to nearby resident property values 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 1.  Sec. 101-1-3 is added and reads:   

Insert in Sec. 101-1-3 after the definition for Correctional facility the following: 

Crematorium means the establishment for final disposition of deceased remains, either human or pet, by 
thermal, mechanical, or other dissolution process that reduces remains to bone fragments and is subject to 
the following requirements: 

a. shall not be the primary use, i.e. it must be accessory or ancillary to a related and legally existing
mortuary, funeral home, columbarium, or cemetery use.

Crematorium equipment means the primary piece of capital performing the task of reducing 
remains to bone fragments.    

Section 2.  Sec. 101-1-3, definition for Funeral home or mortuary, is amended to read: 

Funeral home or mortuary means a facility for the care and custody for the pre-disposition of deceased 
human remains, including the sale of services and merchandise for burial, cremation, and other related 
items, including offices, viewing rooms, chapels, and reception halls for serving the deceased and their 
families. facility for the pre-burial preparation of human cadavers, including facilities for cremation, and 
including other areas for offices, purchase of burial items and services, viewing rooms and areas for the 
conduct of memorial services. 

Section 3.  Sec. 105-1-5 (e) is amended to read: 

Cemetery, Mausoleum, Columbarium, and Crematorium. A cemetery, mausoleum, columbarium or 
crematoriumy may be permitted in an industrial or A district as a special use, provided that: 

(1) No graves shall be located less than 100 feet distant from any property line; 

EXHIBIT 2 - Draft Ordinance - Planning and Zoning Commission 
Recommendation



(2) There shall be a strip at least 75 feet in width adjacent to all boundaries of the cemetery 
landscaped and maintained as a green area;  

(3) In any cemetery in which there will be permitted monuments and grave markers rising above the 
surface of the ground, the green area shall include a dense evergreen hedge at least six feet in 
height; and  

(4) No public mausoleum, columbarium, crematory or cemetery chapel shall be erected within 200 
feet of any boundary of the lot or parcel on which it is located. 

(5) No crematorium equipment shall be placed within 100 feet of a property line excepting along 
adjacent right-of-way.     

 
Section 4.  Sec. 101-1-3 and 105-1-5 (e) is amended and re-enacted. 
 

 
________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________ 
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 
 
Planning and Zoning:                                                                         January 28, 2019 
First Consideration:       February 19, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage:    March 5, 2019 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 13XX 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Portions of Sec. 101-1-3, 105-3-14 (2), 
105-3-15 (2), and Remove Sec. 105-1-5 (k) of the Mandan Municipal Code 

related crematoriums 

WHEREAS, Changes are necessary to remove conflict within the land-use code related 
to cremation-related activities       

WHEREAS, Clarification is required to ensure health and safety and mitigate potential 
negative impacts to nearby resident property values 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 1.  Sec. 105-1-5 (k) is removed. 

Crematorium.  A crematorium may be permitted as a special use with the following minimum 
restrictions: 

(1) No crematorium equipment shall be placed within 100 feet of a property line excepting 
along adjacent right-of-way; and 

(2) Crematoriums shall be located within the Mandan Union Cemetery. 

Section 2.  Sec. 101-1-3 and is amended and re-enacted. 

Crematorium means the establishment for final disposition of deceased remains, either human or 
pet, by thermal, mechanical, or other dissolution process that reduces remains to bone fragments.  
The following standards shall apply: 

(1) Crematorium equipment shall be located a minimum of fifty (50) feet from a property 
line.  

(2) Crematorium equipment shall be located a minimum of three-hundred-fifty (350) feet 
from an existing dwelling.  

Section 3.  Sec. 105-3-14 (2) q. related to permitted uses in the MA Industrial District is added.  

q. Crematorium

EXHIBIT 3



Section 4.  Sec. 105-3-15 (2) v. related to permitted uses in the MB Industrial District is added.   
 
v. Crematorium  
 

 
________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________ 
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 
 
Planning and Zoning:                                                                         July 22, 2019 
First Consideration:       August 20, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage:    September 3, 2019 
 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of preliminary/final plat and first 
consideration of Ordinance 1321 related to a zoning district amendment for proposed 
Midway Fourteenth Addition First Replat.   
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  E-C ND Investments, LLC is seeking the removal 
of zoning restrictions to allow for a warehousing addition to their existing structure.  
Other properties in the same Midway 14th development underwent a zone change in 2013 
to remove restrictions.  This rezone request would bring the entire development under the 
same zoning provisions.   
 
The applicant is also seeking a preliminary and final plat to consolidate the three lots into 
one for the purposes of building expansion.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Application 
Exhibit 2 – DRAFT Ordinance 1321 
Exhibit 3 – Preliminary Plat 
Exhibit 4 – Final Plat 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 5, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Preliminary/final plat and first consideration of 

Ordinance 1321 related to a zoning district 
amendment for proposed Midway Fourteenth 
Addition First Replat   

Public Hearing No. 2 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Preliminary/final plat and first consideration of Ordinance 1321 related to a 
zoning district amendment for proposed Midway Fourteenth Addition First Replat   
Page 2 of 2 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  This document, including Ordinance 1321, have been reviewed and 
approved by Attorney Brown.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the zoning amendment to CC-Commercial without restrictions as presented in 
Exhibit 2, the preliminary plat as presented in Exhibit 3, and the final plat as presented in 
Exhibit 4. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to recommend approval of the zoning amendment to 
CC-Commercial without restrictions as presented in Exhibit 2, the preliminary plat as 
presented in Exhibit 3, and the final plat as presented in Exhibit 4.       
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT 1

CITY OF MANDAN 

Development Review Application 

X Minor Plat ($300) Zone Change ($600) D 
Preliminary Plat up to 20 acres ($350) Planned Unit Development ($700) 

Preliminary Plat more than 20 acres ($400) Zone Change with Minor Plat ($400) 

Final Plat up to 20 lots ($350) Vacation ($500) 

Final Plat 21 to 40 lots ($475) Variance ($400) 

Final Plat more than 40 lots ($700) Special Use Permit ($450) 

Annexation ($450) X Stormwater submittal ($300) 

Annexation with Minor Plat ($200) Stormwater 2"0 & subsequent resubmittal ($50) 

SummaryofRequest 

Combining lots 4-6 of Midway 14th Addition into 1 lot. All lots have the same owner. 

Engineer/Surveyor Property Owner or Applicant 

Name Name 

T om Weigel (HBSE , Inc.) Chris Houwman (E-C ND Investments, LLC) 

Address Address 

3320 H a milton ST. Unit 3 809 W R ussel St. 

City !No State 

lsas~3 
City !so State I Zip 

Bismarck Sioux Fal ls 57104 

email emall 

tweigel@hollybecksurveying.com chouwman@malloyelectr ic.com 

Phone 

I-
Fax Phone 

I-
Fax 

701 -223-3546 605-336-3693 

If the applicant is not the current owner, the current owner must submit a notarized statement authorizing the 

applicant to proceed with the request. 

Location I Type I ExlstingZone I Proposed Zone I Project Name 

XI City I I ETA I I New IX I Addition I CC cc Malloy Electric Phase 2 Expansion 

Property Address LegalOescription 

1401 Action Drive SE Lots 4-6, Block 1 of Midway 14th Addition 

Current Use 

Commercial/ Industrial 

Proposed Use 

Same Section 31 I Township 139 I Range 80 

Parcel Size I BulldingFootprint 1

1 
Stories I 1 8~4i;~gSF 1-

Required Parking 

I-
Provided Parking 

4 Acres 18,450 

Print Name 

Chris Houwma n 

Office Use Only 

Date Received: Initials: Fees Paid: Date 

Notice in paper Mailed to neighbors P&Zmeetin 

A roved Approved with conditions: 

Denied 

Updated 1/1/2019 

N;\PLANNING & ZONING\Development Application - January 2019.docx 



VICINITY MAP 



Exs!, 8ulldlog 

e..st Bulldlno 

R•l!CI' 
L • 183,0fi' 
A"' 1114'.48' 34• 

O' 5C 

$(/RVEYEDD 

110RIZONTli/. QI, Ti.I~~ MAI 

IIE"R Ttc/ll IJ, 



MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION FIRST REPLAT 
BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION 

SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 80 WEST 
CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY 

NORTH DAKOTA 

Scale 1": 50' (lnfl Fl) 

50' 100' 

SURVEYEDDATE: MAY 20t9 

HORIZONTAL DA 'TUM: NAD83(20tt)-ND S 
VERncAl DATUM: NA\.1'88 

••• BACKGROUND IMAGE IS FOR APPROX/MA TE REFERENCE ONLY,_ 

VICINITY MAP 

CURRENT OESCRIPnON OF PROPERTY 
ALL OF LOTS,, 5, AN06, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY 1HH ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, 
~~~~-COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA. SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTA.INING 4.08 ACRES, MORE 

ZONING 
CURRENr ZONING; CC- ColnmM;/alll.lghllndustr18/ Tf8IISJtion 

ZONING CHANGE: NONE 

FLOOD INF'ORMA 770N 

COMM/JNITYNO: Ci/J'o/Mandlln,J8QOi'2 
MAPNUM8ER: 3805!JCO!Jl$0 

ZONE: X(0.2PCTANN/JALCHANCEFLOODHAZAROJ 

LEGEND 

EXISnNG LOT UNE 

PROPOSED LOTUNE 

EXISnNG WATER MAIN 

EXISnNG SANITARY SEWER 

EJOSnNG STORM SEWER 

Q FOUND MONUMENT 

• SET #5 REBAR w/ALUM CAP 

PRELIMINARY PIA T 

Pl.AT IS SUBJECT TO ALL PRIOR 
EASEMENTS OF RECORD Date Issued: 6/1712019 



ORDINANCE NO. 1321 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 105-2-2 OF THE 
MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
AND ZONING MAP. 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 
Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows:   

The following described properties shall be excluded from the CC Commercial 
District with restrictions on Railroad Trackage, Auto Laundry (Car Wash), Auto Repair 
Garages (as a primary use), Commercial Parking Lot/Garage, Off-premise Advertising 
Sign, Steam Bath, Tire/Battery Repair, Storage Building/Warehouse or any of the 
Wholesale Group and be included in the CC Commercial District (no restrictions): 

Lots 4 and 5, Block 1 of Midway Fourteenth Addition, Section 31, Township 139 
North, Range 80 West, City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to 
make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with 
this section.   

Tim Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

Jim Neubauer 
City Administrator 

Planning and Zoning Commission:  July 22, 2019  
First Consideration:                                                                August 20, 2019_______ 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: September 3, 2019__   
Recording Date: 

EXHIBIT 2



EXHIBIT 3

ii, i 
! ! _,,,.-- 10'Utilty --! ...,......- Easement 

MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION FIRST REPLA T 
BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION 

SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 80 WEST 

Exst Bulldlng 

REPLAT SYLVEST 

CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY 

/ 
/ 

(!) / 

NORTH DAKOTA 

ssrsz4s•w 
76.02' 

'S I NOUSTR!At_/~ARK 3RD ADO. 
I 

r ExsL Bulldlng 

Scale 1" : 50' (lnfl Ft) 

50' 100' 

SURVEYED DATE: MAY 20f9 
HORIZONTAL DATUM: NAD83(201t)-ND S 

VERTTCAL OATUM: NAVD88 

S2° 01'16"E 
12.76' 

SYLVESTER' S INDUSTRIAL PARK 4TH ADD. 

VICINITY MAP 

CURRENT DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
All OF LOTS-4, 5, ANO 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY 1'4TH ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, 
MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA. SAIOTRACT OF LAND CONTAINING '4.08 ACRES, MORE 
OR LESS. 

ZONING 

CURRENT ZONING: f:.6.~Cf!/~(Hsa~~~) 
ZONING CIW{GE; LCl8 4, 5, 6- CC(,.,_,,,CcmmM:181~) 

FLOOD INF'ORMA 770N 
CONMUNITYNO: C#yo/Milfldan. J&JCl'2 

MAPNIIMBER: 38059C05150 
ZONE: X(0.2 PCTANNIJALCHANCEFI.OOOHAZAROJ 

LEGEND 

EXISnNGLOTUNE 

PROPOSED LOT UNE 

EXISnNG WATER MAIN 

EXISnNG SANITARY SEWER 

EXISnNG STORM SEWER 

EXISnNG CONTOURS (1 FOOT) 

PROPOSED CONTOURS (f FOOT) 

Q FOUND MONUMENT 

• SET 15 REBAR w/AJ.UM CAP 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

PLAT IS SUBJECT TO ALL PRIOR 
EASEMENTS OF RECORD Date Issued: 6124/2019 



MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION FIRST REPLAT 
BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION 

SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 80 WEST 
CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY 

NORTH DAKOTA 

Scale 1": 50' (lnfl Fl) 

50' 100' 

SURVEYEDDATE: MAY 2019 

HORIZONTAL DA 'TUM: NAD83(20tf)-ND S 
VERncAl DATUM: NA\.1'88 

....,. BACKGROUND IMAGE IS FOR APPROX/MA TE REFERENCE ONLY_, 

VICINITY MAP 

CURRENT OESCRIPnON OF PROPERTY 
ALL OF LOTS,, 5, AN06, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY 1HH ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, 
~~~~-COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA. SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTA.INING 4.08 ACRES, MORE 

ZONING 

CURRENrZONING: i:.6.~Cff/lftf1w~~~) 
ZONING CHANGE: Lots 4, 5; 6-CC(Ht,r,y Ccmmon:ial~) 

FLOOD INFORMATION 

~ ~~ 3.90072 

ZONE: X (0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD) 

LEGEND 

EXISTINGLOTUNE 

PROPOSED LOT UNE 

EXISTING WA T'ER MAIN 

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER 

EXISTING STORM SEWER 

EXISTING CONTOURS (1 FOOT) 

PROPOSED CONTOURS (f FOOT} 

Q FOUND MONUMENT 

• SET 15 REBAR w/ALUM CAP 

PRELIMINARY PIA T 

Pl.AT IS SUBJECT TO ALL PRIOR 
EASEMENTS OF RECORD Date Issued: 6/2412019 



EXHIBIT 4

FINAL PLAT DA TE ISSUED: 1/16/2019 

MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION FIRST REPLA T 

R = 11T 
L= 107.87' 
fl: 526 49' 31 • 

BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION 

SECTION 31 , TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 80 WEST 

LOT1 
177,768 SqFt 
4.08 Acres 

G) 

CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY 
NORTH DAKOTA 

\ 
\ 

\ 

S 89° 27' 31" W 
130.69' 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

·'\_ 

\ 

Scale 1"= 50' (lnrl Fl) 

50' 100' 

SIJRVEYEDDATE: MAY 20t9 
HORIZONTAL DATUM.· NA083(20'1)-NO S 

VER17CALDAnJM: NA~88 

(1) 

SYLVESTER' S I NDUSTRIAL PARK 4TH ADD. 

LEGEND 

0 

• 
FOUND MONUMENT 

SET 15 REBAR w/ALUM C4P 

FLOOD fNFORMA 770N 
COMMUNITYNO: CA)"o/Mandan,.18()()72 

UAPNIIM6ER: 38059C05150 
ZONE: X(0.2PCrANNUALCHANCEFLOOOHAZAROJ 

• DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
All OF LOTS 4, 5, AND 6. BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY 14TH ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, 
NORTH DAKOTA. SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 4.06ACRES, MORE OR LESS 

• OWNER'S CERT/FICA TE & OED/CATION 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING THE SOLE OWNERS OF THE LANO PLATTED HEREON, DO HEREBY VOLUNTARILY 
CONSENT TO THE EXECUTION OF SAID PLAT, AND DO DEDICATE ALL THE STREETS, ALLEYS, PARKS, ANO PUBUC 
GROUNOSM SHOWN HEREON, INCLUDING ALL SEWERS, CULVERTS, BRIDGES, WATERLINES, SIDEWALKS AND 
OTHER IMPROVEMENTS ON OR UNDER SUCH STREETS, Al.l.EYS OR OTHER PUBLIC GFIOUNOS, WHETHER SUCH 
IMPROVEMENTS ARE SHOWN HEREON OR NOT, TO PUBLIC USE FOREVER. WE ALSO DEDICATE EASEMEMTS TO 
RUN WITH 'THE LANDS FOR WATER, SEWER, GAS, ELECTIIICITY, TELEPHONE, OR Oll!ER PUBLIC UTILITY LINES OF 
SERVICES UNDER, ON OR OVER THESE CERTAIN STRIPS OF LAND DESIGNATED AS "llTILITY EASEMENTS", 

=-~w~uc 
STATEOFNORTHDAKOTA ) SkNJ/Falls,S057104 

COUNTYOF ____ ))SS 

NOrARYPUBUC 
MY COMMISSION EXP/Rf=.~•----

• SURVEYOR'S CERnFICA TE 

• 

11-iOMASO. WEIGEl..LS-f08Tf 
HOLLY BECK SURVEYING & ENGINEERING, INC. 
:J320HAMILTONSrUNfT'.1 
lJISMARCl(,N058501 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION APPROVAL 

'THE SUBDIVISION OF LANO SHOWN HEREON HAS BEEN APPROVED BY 'THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 'THE CITY 
OF MANDAN, NORTI-1 DAKOTA ON Tl-llS DAY OF 2019, IN ACCORDANCE Will-I THE LAWS OF 
'THE STATE OF NORTI-1 DAKOTA, ORDINARm OF SAID~DAN, AND REGULATIONS ADOPTED BY Tl-IE 
PLANNING COMMISSION OF SAID CITY, IN WITNESS WHEREOF ARE SETTI-IE HANDS OF THE CHAIRMAN AND Tl-IE 
SECRETARY OF Tl-IE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA. 

• 
'THE BOARD OF 
SUBOMSION 

~:61~~F ALL PARKS AND PUBLIC 0 
CITY COMMISSIONERS OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA. HAS BEEN TAKEN BY RESO 
-~2019. 

• APPROVAL OF CITY ENGINEER 

I, JUSTIN FROSETH, CITY ENGINEER FOR Tl-IE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTI-1 DAKOTA HEREBY APPROVE "MIDWAY 
FOURTEENTI-1 ADDITION FIRST REPLA r MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA AS SHOWN ON 'THE ANNEXED PLAT. 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider variance for Lot 3, Block 1, Midway 14th Addition 
to the required setback based on tower height. 

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Powder River Engineering Services, LLC on 
behalf of Spence Koenig is applying for a variance to the setback requirement for 
communications towers.  The setback requirement is 110% of the height of the structure 
to the property line.  In this case, the proposed tower is 200 feet tall and would require the 
structure to be 220 feet from the property line.  The applicants are requesting a variance 
from 220 feet to 22 feet.  A site plan is provided in Exhibit 2.  The applicants have 
provided a letter stamped by an engineer outlining the most likely scenario of failure (See 
Exhibit 3).   
 
Below are the requirements under the Mandan Code of Ordinances in granting a variance.   
 
Variance may be granted under the following circumstances (See Sec. 105-1-12): 
 

1.   There are special circumstances or conditions, fully described in the 
findings of the board, applying to the land or buildings for which the 
variance is sought, which circumstances or conditions are peculiar to such 
land or building, and do not apply generally to land or buildings in the 
neighborhood, and have not resulted from any act of the applicant taken 
subsequent to the adoption of this chapter, whether in violation of the 
provisions of the chapter, or not; 

 
There do not appear to be any special circumstances or conditions that apply to the land 
or buildings for which the variance is sought.   
 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 6, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Consider Variance for Lot 3, Block 1, Midway 14th 

Addition to the Required Setback based on Tower 
Height  

Public Hearing No. 3 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Consider Variance for Lot 3, Block 1, Midway 14th Addition to the Required 
Setback Based on Tower Height. 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 
 

2.   For reasons fully set forth in the findings of the board, the circumstances 
or conditions so found are such that the strict application of the provisions of 
this chapter would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of said land or 
building, and the granting of the variance is necessary for the reasonable use 
of the land or building, and that the variance as granted by the board is the 
minimum variance that will accomplish the relief sought by the applicant; 

 
The land does not have a commercial improvement on it at this time, although it is 
sufficiently sized to accommodate many other commercial uses.  A variance does not 
appear to be necessary to obtain a reasonable use of this land.    
 

3. The grant of the variance will be in harmony with the general purposes 
and intent of this chapter, and not be injurious to the neighborhood or 
otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

 
Without certainty that a structural failure would NOT result in the structure crossing a 
property line as the setback ordinance is in place to provide, a grant of a variance does 
not appear to be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this chapter or to 
not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Applicant’s Summary of Variance Request 
Exhibit 2 – Site Plan 
Exhibit 3 – Engineering Letter 
Exhibit 4 – Reasons for Denial 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  This document has been reviewed and approved by the City 
Attorney. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Engineering and Planning recommend denial of the setback of 
220’ to 22 feet for failure to meet the requirements of 105-1-12 surrounding variances to 
the zoning code for the reasons outlined in Exhibit 4.     
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Consider Variance for Lot 3, Block 1, Midway 14th Addition to the Required 
Setback Based on Tower Height. 
Page 3 of 3 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to deny the setback of 220’ to 22 feet for failure to 
meet the requirements of 105-1-12 surrounding variances to the zoning code for the 
reasons outlined in Exhibit 4.     
 
 
 
  



Powder River Development Services, LLC 
4332 E Park Ave. 

Gilbert, AZ  85234 

(614) 389‐3914 Office 

www.powderriverdev.com 

July 3rd, 2019 

TO:   City of Mandan  

FROM:  Brandon Peterson, Powder River Development, on behalf of AT&T 

RE:  Request for variance relief – proposed communications tower (ref. Memorial Hwy & 40th Ave SE) 

My name is Brandon Peterson and I work for Powder River Development Services on behalf of AT&T. 

Thank you for taking the request for setback relief related to a proposed communications tower into 

consideration and we hope we’re able to provide all necessary materials. 

The setback relief is being sought in order locate a 200’ communications monopole tower in such a way 

that is most favorable based on the topography of the parcel, surrounding area and to minimize the 

impact of the property owner’s current use of the property due to very limited space available.  The 

current setback requirement is 110% of the tower height and currently we are asking for a setback equal 

to 22’ from the property line.  To make up for this difference in distance the tower has been engineered 

to collapse/buckle into itself if it were to start falling so it would not fall onto the neighboring property 

and more than likely just lean slightly and stay in that state until removed.      

In closing, thank you again for taking this variance request into consideration and I would respectfully 

request your approval. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Brandon Peterson 
Agent on behalf of AT&T 
James.ries@powderriverdev.com 
612‐481‐2228   

EXHIBIT 1

Development Services , LLC 



EXHIBIT 2
THIS IS NOT AN ALL INCLUSIVE UST. CONTRACTOR SHALL 
UTILIZE SPECtflED EQUIPMENT PART OR ENGINEER 
APPROVED EQUIVALENT. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY All 
NEEDED EQUIPMENT TO PROVIDE A FUNCTIONAL SITE. 

THE PROJECT GENERALLY CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING: 

PROPOSED-SITE· 
IN STALL ( 1) 80~)(80" VERTIV WIC EQUIPMENT SHELTER 
INSTALL (1) ICE-BRIDGE W/ SUPPORT POSTS (APPROX. 
8'-0") 
INSTALL (1) H-rRAME W/ (1) SINGLE METER PANEL AND 
( 1 ) HOFfMAN BOX 

PROPOSED-TOWER: 
INSTALL (J) COMMSCOPE MTC.3615 SECTOR FRAMES, 1 
PER SECTOR 
INSTALL (1) AIRSCALE DUAL RRH 4T4R 812/14 J20W 
AHLBA, 1 PER SECTOR 
!NSTALL ( 1) DUAL BAND B25/866 RRH, 1 PER SECTOR 

I 
INSTALL ( 1) 85 850 RRH {AIRSCALE), 1 PER SECTOR 
IN STALL (1) WCS RRHS, 1 PER SECTOR 
IN STALL ( 12) KMW EP8Q- 654L8H8-L2 ANTENNA.5, 1 PER 
SECTOR 

2
> INSTALL (3) R1'.YCAP OC6-•8- 60- 18-8C-EV SURGE 

PROTECTION UNIT 
INSTALL {6) DC POWER CABLES 

tJ INSTALL ( 1) FIBER CABLE 

i 
i 

PROPOSED-SHELTER: 
INSTALL (1) POWER BAY 
INSTALL (1) BATTERY STACK 
INSTALL (2) 23" FIF RACKS 
INSTALL (1) LTE GPS UNIT 

e SEPARATE PEDESTAL 

; ~::::TL T~) ;::R::::IREO SHELTER EQUIPMENT•• 

'--" ~ at&t 
7900 XERXES AVf. S, JRD FLOOR 

BLOOMINGTON "4N 554.31 

.A~ 

POWDER RIVER 
Eng:neering SeM:ss, LLC 
www.powdeniverdev.c.om 

1701 AMERICAN BLVD EAST 
BLOOMINGTON, MN 55425 

1960PE 

OAlE '"' 

~ 0 11/28/18 100',I; CONSTRUCTKltl 

§L------------------~- ll 11 1e/1e ISSUED~ REVIEW 90% 

JED .. , 
! PROJECT DESCRIPTION 2 

i5 1. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS 

1
1 

2. CONTRACTOR S1-W..L MAINTAIN A 1 O' -0" MINIMUM 

~ 

SEPARATION BETWEEN THE PROPOSED LTE CPS 
ANTENNA ANO TRANSMITTING ANTENNAS. 

~ J. PROPERTY LIN£S ARE APPROXIMATIONS ONLY 

~ 4. ANTENNAS & "40UNTS OMITTED FOR CLARITY 

· 5. FOR FIBER TRUNK REF AT&T LTE GUIDE LINES REV. I 1.9, PAGE 1 J, TABLE 2.1.2. 

' 6. ~~~s~i~~~: ~~~~E 1T•~uf:aLiEi;_;:fT LTE GUIDE 

I NOTES 3 

I 
I 

WOOD FENCE 

CHAIN-LINK FENCE 

LEASE AREA 

D 

~L-----------....--
LEGEND 4 

"'" 
MAM 

-~---------,..-~--_ _.._ _________ _.....,_ .._,..,_----~----.. hUUll9---------______ ., ______ ,. 
----------SITE INFORMATION: 

PROJECT: 
NSB (LTE 1C) 

AT&T SITE ID: 
NDL02919 

1450 ACTION DRIVE SE 
MANDAN, ND 58554 

MORTON 

SHEET TITLE: 

OVERALL SITE PLAN 

SHEET NUMBER: 

C-1 



EXHIBIT 3

July 22, 2019 

Ms. Karey Vawter 
Diamond Communications LLC 
820 Morris Turnpike 
Suite 104 
Short Hills, NJ 07078 

RE: Proposed 200' Monopole for Action Drive, ND 

Dear Ms. Vawter, 

Sabre Industries) 
Towers and Poles 

Upon receipt of order, we propose to design and supply the above referenced tower for a Basic Wind 
Speed of 111 mph with no ice and 60 mph+ 1" ice, Structure Class II, Exposure Category C, and 
Topographic Category 1, in accordance with the Telecommunications Industry Association Standard 
ANSI/TIA-222-G, "Structural Standard for Antenna Supporting Structures and Antennas". 

When designed according to this standard, the wind pressures and steel strength capacities include 
several safety factors, resulting in an overall minimum safety factor of 25%. Therefore, it is highly 
unlikely that the monopole will fail structurally in a wind event where the design wind speed is 
exceeded within the range of the built-in safety factors. 

Should the wind speed increase beyond the capacity of the built-in safety factors, to the point of 
failure of one or more structural elements, the most likely location of the failure would be within the 
monopole shaft, above the base plate. Assuming that the wind pressure profile is similar to that used 
to design the monopole, the monopole will buckle at the location of the highest combined stress ratio 
within the monopole shaft. This is likely to result in the portion of the monopole above leaning over 
and remaining in a permanently deformed condition. Please note that this letter only applies to 
the above referenced monopole designed and manufactured by Sabre Towers & Poles. This 
would effectively result in a 22 ft fall zone at ground level. 

Sincerely, 

Robert E. Beacom, P.E., S.E. 
Engineering Supervisor 

Sabre Towers and Poles• 7101 Southbridge Drive• P.O. Box 658 • Sioux City, IA 51102-0658 
P: 712-258-6690 F: 712-279-0814 W: www.SabreTowersandPoles.com 



EXHBIT 4 
Variance may be granted under the following circumstances (See Sec. 105-1-12): 

1. There are special circumstances or conditions, fully described in the findings of
the board, applying to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought, which 
circumstances or conditions are peculiar to such land or building, and do not apply 
generally to land or buildings in the neighborhood, and have not resulted from any 
act of the applicant taken subsequent to the adoption of this chapter, whether in 
violation of the provisions of the chapter, or not; 

There do not appear to be any special circumstances or conditions that apply to the land or 
buildings for which the variance is sought.   

2. For reasons fully set forth in the findings of the board, the circumstances or
conditions so found are such that the strict application of the provisions of this 
chapter would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of said land or building, 
and the granting of the variance is necessary for the reasonable use of the land or 
building, and that the variance as granted by the board is the minimum variance that 
will accomplish the relief sought by the applicant; 

The land does not have a commercial improvement on it at this time, although it is sufficiently 
sized to accommodate many other commercial uses.  A variance does not appear to be 
necessary to obtain a reasonable use of this land.    

3. The grant of the variance will be in harmony with the general purposes and intent
of this chapter, and not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental 
to the public welfare. 

Without certainty that a structural failure would NOT result in the structure crossing a 
property line as the setback ordinance is in place to provide, a grant of a variance does not 
appear to be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this chapter or to not be 
injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.   



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 
1322 related to a zoning district amendment for select lots in Scott’s Acres.  This property 
is the site of Engage Church off Old Red Trail NW.       
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Engage Church is seeking to divide their property 
located to the southwest of the intersection of Old Red Trail NW and Highland Rd. NW 
and rezone one of the newly created lots to MA Industrial and the other to R7 Residential 
(See Exhibit 2).  
 
The existing zoning is MA Industrial and R7 Residential.  The request is to reorient the 
zoning district boundaries to align with the proposed lots just noted.  The MA Industrial 
zoning is currently located along the rear of the property.  The R7 Residential is located 
along the front of the property (See Exhibit 1).   
 
Storage Units are located to the west of the proposed industrially zoned property; Utility 
outdoor storage is to the south.  Industrial uses are more appropriate than a single family 
residence for the land between Engage Church and the rest of this industrial area.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the zoning amendment in Exhibit 3 for the reasons as 
outlined in Exhibit 4.    
 
These reasons are: 
 

• The property to the west and south are industrial zoned; the properties to the 
east/north are residentially zoned 

• The proposed industrial zoning district boundary abuts one of Mandan’s large 
industrial parks 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 6, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance 1322 related to a 

zoning district amendment for select lots in Scott’s 
Acres (Proposed Engage Addition)   

Public Hearing No. 4 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: First consideration of Ordinance 1322 related to a zoning district amendment for 
select lots in Scott’s Acres (Proposed Engage Addition)   
Page 2 of 2 
 

• The church provides a harmonious transition from more intense industrial uses 
to lesser intense residential uses to the north and east 

• The existing zoning designations of MA Industrial and R7 Residential already 
exist on the property in a different configuration; this is a reconfiguration of 
what already exists on the property 

ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Current Configuration of Zoning District Boundaries 
Exhibit 2 – Proposed Orientation of Zoning District Boundaries 
Exhibit 3 – DRAFT Zoning Amendment – Ordinance 1322 
Exhibit 4 – Rationale for Approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment Request 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  This document, including Ordinance 1322, have been reviewed and 
approved by Attorney Brown.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1322 per Exhibit 3 based on the reasons 
outlined in Exhibit 4.  
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to recommend approval of the first consideration of 
Ordinance 1322 per Exhibit 3 based on the reasons outlined in Exhibit 4. 
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT 1 
CURRENT ZONING CONFIGURATION 

 

 

R7 

RESIDENTIAL 

MA INDUSTRIAL 



EX
H

IB
IT

 2

® 

_J 
42ND STREET NW 

7 

75 75 150 

SCALE FEE 

Jun 20, 2019 - 4:39pm - P:\NonProfil\EngageChurch_Mandan\1919-01194-EngageChurch-Mandan\CAD\20190621-Engage_Rezone-Exhibit.dwg (Layout1) PRELIMINARY - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

DRAFTED 

ADW 
REVIEWED 

PROJECT NUMBER 

PROJECT# 

z 
0 i:: .:=I~ !::: 
-u<( m 
Co::o :c 
C => I >< 
<C o!r: w 

WOW 
W C}Z Z 
,n <( - 0 
'-' C9 z N <C z <( 

Cl W 
(!) w z 0:: 

z ~ 
w 

© KLJ 2019 



ORDINANCE NO. 1322 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 105-2-2 OF THE 
MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
AND ZONING MAP. 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 
Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows:   

The following described properties located Section 17, Township 139N, Range 
81W, City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota shall be excluded from the MA 
Industrial District and R7 Residential District: 

Lots 11-13, Block 1, Scott’s Acres First Addition (R7 Residential District)  
Lot 1A of Lot 1, Block 2, Scott’s Acres (MA Industrial District) 

This same property shall be included in the MA Industrial District and R7 Residential 
District in a reconfigured manner per the proposed plat of Engage Addition as follows: 

Lot 1 – MA Industrial District 
Lot 2 – R7 Residential District 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to 
make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with 
this section.   

Tim Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

Jim Neubauer 
City Administrator 

Planning and Zoning Commission:  July 22, 2019  
First Consideration:    August 20, 2019_______ 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: September 3, 2019__   
Recording Date: 

EXHIBIT 3



EXHIBIT 4 

 
• The property to the west and south are industrial zoned; the properties to the 

east/north are residentially zoned 
• The proposed industrial zoning district boundary abuts one of Mandan’s large industrial 

parks 
• The church provides a harmonious transition from more intense industrial uses to lesser 

intense residential uses to the north and east 
• The existing zoning designations of MA Industrial and R7 Residential already exist on the 

property in a different configuration; this is a reconfiguration of what already exists on 
the property 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 
1323 related to a zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for proposed Meadow 
Ridge 4th Addition 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The applicant is requesting approval for a rezone 
from MC-Industrial to RM-Residential and a preliminary plat to create four new lots.  
Each lot is planned to be further subdivided in the future once a specific placement for a 
twin-home has been determined. The lot line would then divide the shared wall so that 
each side of the structure could be owned independently.  Exhibit 2 contains the 
preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 4th Addition. 

Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval subject to a restriction only 
allowing single and two-family construction following concerns raised by adjacent 
residents.  The applicant is amenable to this restriction.     

ATTACHMENTS:   

Exhibit 1 – DRAFT Ordinance 1323 
Exhibit 2 – Preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 4th Addition 

FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/a 

LEGAL REVIEW:  This document, including Ordinance 1323, have been reviewed and 
approved by the City Attorney.   

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 6, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance 1323 related to a 

zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for 
proposed Meadow Ridge 4th Addition 

Public Hearing No. 5 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: First consideration of Ordinance 1323 related to a zoning district amendment and 
preliminary plat for proposed Meadow Ridge 4th Addition  
Page 2 of 2 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1323 as reflected in Exhibit 1 and the 
preliminary plat as shown in Exhibit 2.    
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1323 as 
reflected in Exhibit 1 and the preliminary plat as shown in Exhibit 2 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 1323 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 105-2-2 OF THE 
MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
AND ZONING MAP. 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 
Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows:   

The following described properties located in part of Lot 44, Block 1, Pioneer 
Park 1st Addtiion, and Part of the NW ¼, Section 22, Township 139N, Range 81W, City 
of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota shall be excluded from the MC Industrial 
District and R3.2 Residential District and shall be included in the RM Residential District 
WITH RESTRICTIONS to single and two-family residential construction: 

Meadow Ridge 4th Addition (proposed) 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to 
make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with 
this section.   

SECTION 3.  EFFECT.  This ordinance shall go into effect upon the recordation of a 
final plat of Meadow Ridge 4th Addition as described in Section 1.      

Tim Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

Jim Neubauer 
City Administrator 

Planning and Zoning Commission:  July 22, 2019  
First Consideration:                                                                August 20, 2019_______ 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: September 3, 2019__   
Recording Date: 

EXHIBIT 1



1

2

2
15600 SF
0.36 AC±

3
15600 SF
0.36 AC±

4
16918 SF
0.39 AC±

1
15612 SF
0.36 AC±

130.00' 130.00'
S0

0°
 0

2'
 0

4"
E

12
0.

00
'

130.20' 130.00' 130.00' 164.88'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
12

0.
00

'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
12

0.
00

'

A
=26.70'

N89° 57' 56"E 593.92' =17°31'46"
R=217.00'
A=66.39'
CH=S15° 30' 19"E
CL=66.13'

S24° 16' 13"E

66.76'

=13°04'28"
R=283.00'
A=64.58'
CH=S17° 43' 59"E
CL=64.44'

S89° 57' 56"W622.75'

N
0°

 0
3'

 3
9"

E
12

0.
00

'

S89° 57' 56"W
36.00'

N
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

W
66

.0
0' N89° 57' 56"E

566.34'
.

164.88' 67.68'

A
=3

6.
41

'

66.76'

130.00' 115.58'

C
1

C2

S24° 16' 13"E

66.76'

C
4

1

66' ROW

33'

33'

66' ROW

33'

33'

70' RIW

40' 30'
66' ROW

66' ROW

23' BOC TO
ASPHALT EDGE

41' B-B

41' B-B

41' B-B

8" PVC SAN. SEWER

8" PVC WATERMAIN

8T
H

 A
VE

 N
W

24TH ST NW

7T
H

 A
VE

 N
W

6TH
 A

VE N
W

6TH AVE NW

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

CENTERLINE STREET CURVE TABLE

CURVE #

C1

C2

C4

DELTA

7°40'39"

10°44'26"

11°34'42"

RADIUS

250.00'

250.00'

250.00'

LENGTH

33.50'

46.86'

50.52'

CHORD BEARING

S9° 41' 27"E

S18° 53' 59"E

S18° 28' 53"E

CHORD LENGTH

33.47'

46.80'

50.43'

MEADOW RIDGE 4TH ADDITION

LEGEND

EXISTING TELEPHONE CABLE

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING GATE VALVE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING TREE

EXISTING ELECTRICAL BOX

EXISTING STREET LIGHT

EXISTING TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

EXISTING MANHOLE

EXISTING CABLE TV

EXISTING ASPHALT

EXISTING GAS LINE

EXISTING STORM SEWER

EXISTING CURB & GUTTER

EXISTING WATERMAIN

EXISTING SANITARY SEWERMAIN

MEADOW RIDGE 4TH ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

PART OF LOT 44, BLOCK 1, PIONEER PARK 1ST ADDITION, AND PART OF THE NW1/4,
SECTION 22, T139N-R81W OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

PRELIMINARY PLAT

4414

0

Scale 1" =            ft
VERT. DATUM:

HORIZ. DATUM:

3030

30

60

NAVD88
1983 ST. PLANE, ND SOUTH (3302)

OWNERS:
WW RANCH, A LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
PO BOX 838
BISMARCK, ND 58502

MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO
400 N. 4TH ST
BISMARCK, ND 58501

BASIS OF BEARING:
BASIS OF BEARING: NORTH BOUNDARY LINE
NORTH 89° 57' 56" EAST.

NOTES:
1. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES MAY VARY FROM

PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS OF RECORD DUE TO
DIFFERENT METHODS OF FIELD MEASUREMENT.

2. TOTAL LOT ACREAGE: 1.46
TOTAL STREET ACREAGE: 1.11
TOTAL ACREAGE: 2.57

PROPOSED SEWERMAIN

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATERMAIN

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED STREET LIGHT

EXISTING WATER SERVICE

EXISTING SANITARY SERVICE

o
j
e
c
t
s
\
4
0
0
0
\
4
4
1
4
 
M
e
a
d
o
w
 
R
i
d
g
e
 
4
t
h
\
4
4
1
4
 
P
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
P
l
a
t
.
d
w
g
,
 
8
/
1
4
/
2
0
1
9
 
3
:
2
3
:
1
5
 
P
M
,
 
A
n
d
r
a
,
 
1
:
1

EXHIBIT 2

·+· 
" 
* IJ'J 
0 
-6-
@ 

-
-ss-ss-

\ C=:J 
* 

s 

JUNE, 2019 

I I I I I 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 
1324 related to a zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for proposed Meadow 
Ridge 5th Addition. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The applicant is requesting approval for a rezone 
from MC-Industrial to RM-Residential and a preliminary plat to create eight new lots. As 
with Meadow Ridge 4th Addition, each lot is planned to be further subdivided in the 
future.  Exhibit 2 contains the preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 5th Addition. 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the zoning amendment and 
preliminary plat.       
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – DRAFT Ordinance 1324 
Exhibit 2 – Preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 5th Addition 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  This document, including Ordinance 1324, have been reviewed and 
approved by Attorney Brown.   
 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 6, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance 1324 related to a 

zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for 
proposed Meadow Ridge 5th Addition 

Public Hearing No. 6 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: First consideration of Ordinance 1324 related to a zoning district amendment and 
preliminary plat for proposed Meadow Ridge 5th Addition 
Page 2 of 2 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1324 as reflected in Exhibit 1 and the 
preliminary plat as shown in Exhibit 2.    
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1324 as 
reflected in Exhibit 1 and the preliminary plat as shown in Exhibit 2. 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 1324 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 105-2-2 OF THE 
MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
AND ZONING MAP. 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 
Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows:   

The following described properties located in part of the NW ¼, Section 22, 
Township 139N, Range 81W, City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota shall be 
excluded from the MC Industrial District and R3.2 Residential District and shall be 
included in the RM Residential District: 

Meadow Ridge 5th Addition (proposed) 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to 
make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with 
this section.   

SECTION 3.  EFFECT.  This ordinance shall go into effect upon the recordation of a 
final plat of Meadow Ridge 5th Addition as described in Section 1.      

Tim Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

Jim Neubauer 
City Administrator 

Planning and Zoning Commission:  July 22, 2019  
First Consideration:                                                                August 20, 2019_______ 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: September 3, 2019__   
Recording Date: 

EXHIBIT 1



1

66' ROW

66' ROW

66' ROW

41' B-B

41' B-B

8" PVC SAN. SEWER

8" PVC WATERMAIN

24TH ST NW

6TH
 A

VE N
W

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

2

1

N87° 42' 57"E 557.47'

S4
° 2

4'
 5

2"
E

37
1.

69
'

S85° 30' 30"W

149.81'

N79° 14' 45"W68.34'
S89° 57' 56"W297.29'

=13°04'33"
R=283.00'

A=64.59'
CH=N17° 43' 57"W

CL=64.45'

N24° 16' 13"W
66.76'

=21°59'11"
R=217.00'

A=83.27'
CH=N13° 16' 38"W

CL=82.76'

N
2°

 1
7'

 0
3"

W
14

4.
86

'

1
19389 SF
0.45 AC±

2
16830 SF
0.39 AC±

3
17223 SF
0.40 AC±

4
17088 SF
0.39 AC±

5
36651 SF
0.84 AC±

6
19487 SF
0.45 AC±

1
19974 SF
0.46 AC±

2
17586 SF
0.40 AC±

114.41' 100.00' 100.00' 38.10' A=42.46'

A=56.13'

8.26'

13
0.

00
'

12
0.

37
'

144.45'189.47'

148.63'148.66'

13
0.

00
'

24
1.

69
'

142.47'
93.34'

100.08'
100.08'

121.50'

A=16.88'

A
=6

6.
39

'

2.48'

64.28'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
16

6.
34

'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
17

0.
27

'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
17

4.
20

'

S3
6°

 51
' 1

2"
W

34
.94

'
N

01
° 5

5'
 3

3"
W

16
3.

24
'

N85° 30' 30"E

149.99'

N
02

° 2
9'

 5
6"

W
12

0.
12

'

1

2

S89° 57' 56"W
345.98'

C1

N
4°

 2
9'

 3
0"

W

12
9.

26
'

66' ROW

33'

33'

66' ROW

33'
33'

24TH ST NW

75' STORM SEWER
DETENTION POND

EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

5T
H

 A
VE

 N
W

CENTERLINE STREET CURVE TABLE

CURVE #

C1

DELTA

85°26'02"

RADIUS

33.10'

LENGTH

49.35'

CHORD BEARING

N47° 12' 31"W

CHORD LENGTH

44.90'

MEADOW RIDGE 5TH ADDITION

MEADOW RIDGE 5TH ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

PART OF THE NW1/4, SECTION 22, T139N-R81W OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON
COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

PRELIMINARY PLAT

4454

0

Scale 1" =            ft
VERT. DATUM:

HORIZ. DATUM:

3030

30

60

NAVD88
1983 ST. PLANE, ND SOUTH (3302)

OWNERS:
WW RANCH, A LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
PO BOX 838
BISMARCK, ND 58502

BASIS OF BEARING:
BASIS OF BEARING: NORTH BOUNDARY LINE
NORTH 87° 42' 57" EAST.

NOTES:
1. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES MAY VARY FROM

PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS OF RECORD DUE TO
DIFFERENT METHODS OF FIELD MEASUREMENT.

2. TOTAL LOT ACREAGE: 3.77
TOTAL STREET ACREAGE: 0.79
TOTAL ACREAGE: 4.56

LEGEND

EXISTING TELEPHONE CABLE

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING GATE VALVE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING TREE

EXISTING ELECTRICAL BOX

EXISTING STREET LIGHT

EXISTING TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

EXISTING MANHOLE

EXISTING CABLE TV

EXISTING ASPHALT

EXISTING GAS LINE

EXISTING STORM SEWER

EXISTING CURB & GUTTER

EXISTING WATERMAIN

EXISTING SANITARY SEWERMAIN

PROPOSED SEWERMAIN

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATERMAIN

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED STREET LIGHT

EXISTING WATER SERVICE

EXISTING SANITARY SERVICE

o
j
e
c
t
s
\
4
0
0
0
\
4
4
5
4
 
M
e
a
d
o
w
 
R
i
d
g
e
 
5
t
h
\
4
4
5
4
 
P
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
P
l
a
t
.
d
w
g
,
 
8
/
1
5
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
1
8
:
2
0
 
P
M
,
 
A
n
d
r
a
,
 
1
:
1

EXHIBIT 2

" 
* IJ'J 
0 
-6-
@ 

·+· s 

JUNE, 2019 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To award a contract for bids received for the demolition of 
210 5th St NW Mandan ND.  The demolition of the structure will include the demolition 
of the structure, removal of all debris, termination of all utility services, and the placing 
compacted fill to make the site buildable for the future. 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: On August 12th we received 1 bid on the project. 
The low bid amount was $32,500.00 from Boehm Construction and Spray Foam. 
Following is the list of the bidder’s and their bids: 
 

1. Boehm Construction and Spray Foam $32,500.00 
 
In addition to the bid received there is a purchase agreement form Jack and Marie Freidt. 
They would purchase the lot and remove all structures form the lot and construct a new 
house. The closing date for the purchase would be on or before September 19th 2019 with 
the demolition to be completed by or before October 31st 2019. The new home 
construction would then begin with the foundation to be installed in the fall of 2019 and 
the construction of the home to be completed in the spring/summer of 2020.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  1. Bid Documentation  

2. Resolution Approving Contract and Contractor’s Bond 
3. Purchase agreement and time line for Jack and Marie Freidt 

  
 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 13, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Building Inspections 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shawn Ouradnik, Building Official 
PRESENTER: Shawn Ouradnik 
SUBJECT: Consider the award of bids for demolition of 210 

5th St NW Mandan ND. Request for proposal # 
001 and approving the Resolution approving the 
contract and contractor's bond. 

Bid No. 1 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20th, 2019 
Subject: Consider the award of bids for demolition of 210 5th St NW Mandan ND. 
Request for proposal # 001 and approving the Resolution approving the contract and 
contractor's bond. 
Page 2 of 2 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Costs may be special assessed to property. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:   Inspections department will process demolition permit and/or new 
home permit and inspect site for compliance with city codes.  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:   All material forwarded to the City Attorney for review. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   I recommend tabling the bid approval until the purchase of 
the property at 210 5th St NW is completed or abandon.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I would move to table the award of the contract for 
demolition of 210 5th St NW Mandan ND and subsequent resolution until the purchase of 
the property is decided.  
 



Boehm Construction and Spray Foam 
4540 Springcreek Dr. 
Mandan, ND 58554 
(701)667-4345 or (701)400-8477 

John R. Boehm 
Owner/operator 

Name/ Address/ Phone number 

City of Mandan Building Inspections Department 
205 2nd Ave NW Mandan Nd, 58554 

Item 

Condemned 
House 

Description 

Boehm Construction will supply all equipment, 
tools and labor for removal of house. 

All debris will be hauled to Mandan Landfill 

Bid contingent on aspestos inspection. Findings, and 
disposal. 

TOTAL 

Signature - - / . 

Site Location 

210 5th St. NW Mandan ND 

Unit Rate 

Bid 
08/12/201() 

Total 

$32,500.00 

$32,500.00 



State of North Dakota 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

CONTRACTOR LICENSE 

NO: 34912 

CLASS:C 

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of the state of North Dakota and 
Registrar of Contractors, certifies that JOHN R BOEHM whose address 
is in MANDAN, ND, has filed in this office proper documents for a 
Contractor License valid until March 1, 2020, and has complied with all 
requirements of North Dakota Century Code, chapter 43-07. 

JOHN R BOEHM is entitled to bid on and accept contracts as authorized 
by law under this license provided that any single contract project may 
not exceed $300,000 in value. 

Dated: March 18, 2019 

~~ 
Alvin A. Jaeger 

Secretary of State 



WSI 
North Dakota Workforce 

Safety & Insurance 

JOHN RBOEHM 

CERTIFICATE OF 
PREMIUM PAYMENT 
WORKFORCE SAFETY & INSURANCE 
EMPLOYER SERVICES 
SFN 4920 (04/2007) 

1600 EAST CENTURY AVENUE, SUITE 1 
PO BOX5585 

BISMARCK ND 58506-5585 
Telephone 1-800-777-5033 

Toll Free Fax 1-888-786-8695 
TTY (hearing impaired) 1-800-366-6888 

Fraud and Safety Hotline 1-800-243-3331 
www.WorkforceSafety.com 

BOEHM SALVAGE & CONSTRUCTION 
4540 SPRING CREEK RD 

Employer Account Number. 1297951 

Issued Date: 12/03/2018 

Expiration Date: 09/13/2019 
MANDAN ND 58554-

CERTIFICATE OF PREMIUM PAYMENT 

This is to certify that North Dakota Workers Compensation coverage is effective for the employer named on this 
certificate. Employees of the named employer are entitled to apply for the rights and benefits of Workforce Safety and 
lnsurance(WSI). 

Coverage under this certificate extends to North Dakota based employers for their North Dakota exposure. Limited 
coverage extends beyond the physical boundaries of North Dakota. Contact the Policyholder Services Department of 
WSI at 1-800-777-5033 for further information on coverage issues or to inquire into the status of the holder of this 
certificate. 

North Dakota Century Code § 65-04-04 requires that each employer post this Certificate of Premium Payment in a 
conspicuous manner at the workplace. A penalty of $250 may apply for failure to comply with this requirement. 

A Certificate of Premium Payment may be revoked for failure to make required premium payments. 

Barry Schumacher 
Chief of Employer Services 

5410E 
6042 
7215 

PS 

- lnsulationmsfallation-caulking 
Street & Hwy Const-Maintenance 
Trucking & Hauling 



JOHNRBO-01 DBRUNSVOLD 
ACORD' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 

DATE (MM/DDNYYY) 

~ 8/12/2019 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on 
this certificate does not confer riQhts to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 6l?tm1cT Deb Brunsvold 
HUB International Mountain States Limited ri:1g,NJ0, Ext): (701) 271-6628 I FAX 
713 Park Ave IAIC. No): 

PO Box 368 ~;M..'Ul,..M. deb.br unsvold@hubinternational.com 
Portland, ND 58274 

INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

1NsURERA :Auto-Owners Insurance Comoanv 18988 
INSURED INSURER B: Owners Insurance Comoanv 32700 

John RBoehm INSURERC : 

4540 Spring Creek Dr INSURERD: 
Mandan, ND 58554 

INSU.RERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· REVISION NUMBER· 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN ISSUBJECTTOALL THETERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ~.?.m· 1m~~ POLICY NUMBER ,,.';!'.JLICYEFF POLICY EXP 
LIMITS ITR IMM/DD""""" 

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 
1,000,000 - :J CLAIMS-MADE [KJ OCCUR g~~jW:~J9i:~~-- 300,000 77642574-19 3/1/2019 3/1/2020 $ 

MED EXP IAnv one oerson\ $ 10,000 -
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY - $ 1,000,000 

1,000,000 
GEN'L AGGR• E LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ M PRO- • PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 1,000,000 POLICY JECT LOC 

OTHER; 
HIRED AND NONOW 

$ 1,000,000 

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY nc~~JJ'!,~~1r 1NGLE LIMIT $ 1,000,000 

ANY AUTO 5064257400 3/1/2018 3/1/2019 BODILY INJURY /Per oorsonl $ - O'M'-JED X SCHEDULED 

- AUTOS ONLY _ AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $ 

X HIRED ~8-lti'?;'-'lf~JT.~ iP~9~~t?AMAGE $ AUTOS ONLY -
$ 

UMBRELLA LIAB ~ , OCCUR EAC.H OCCURRENCE $ -
EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 

OED I I RETENTION $ $ 

WORKERS COMPENSATION I ~ffrurE l I ~;rH-
AND EMPLOYERS" LIABILITY 

Y/N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE • 

NIA 
EL EACH ACCIDENT $ 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE - POLICY UMJT $ 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CA NC ELLA TION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 

Evidence of Insurance 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

I 
~~>IU/..,_ 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



RESOLUTION 
APPROVING CONTRACT AND CONTRACTOR’S BOND FOR 

RFP # 001 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 
(the “City”), as follows: 
 

1.  It is hereby found and determined that this Board has heretofore 
caused Notice for Advertisement for Bids to be made for the demolition of the home at  
210 5th St NW Mandan ND RFP # 001 of said City, and has duly and 
publicly opened and considered said bids received pursuant to said Notice. 
 
2.  Said demolition is hereby ordered to be carried out in 
accordance with the plans and specifications therefor as heretofore 
adopted by this Board pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by this Board. 
 
3.  It is hereby found and determined that the lowest responsible 
bidder for various categories of the work, material and skill required for 
said demolition is Boehm Construction and Spray Foam whose bid provides for the 
demolition of said structure at a total estimated base price of 
$32,500.00. 
 
4.  The President of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 
Mandan and City Auditor are hereby authorized and directed to make and 
enter into a contract with said bidder on the part of the City, in the form 
prescribed by Sections 40-22-35, N.D.C.C. as amended, provided that said bidder shall 
within ten (10) days from this date execute said contract and a construction bond.  
 

Dated this 20th day of August, 2019 
 
              

President, Board of City Commissioners 
 

Attest: 
 
                                      
City Administrator 



OFFER TO PURCHASN-REALESTATE ·-.• .:. 

. . ' 

subject to. seller's acceptance, for the sum of :•:tj_ci SJ btJqi tJO · ~ ~ ~~ · 
Pu~ price ............... :.: .......... ~ ....... ·:·· ...... ; .... ~ ..... ' .. ."; ...... ~ ..... .: ..... : ....... :··~ .. : .. : ........ . ,. ta 5 ,o tJ O. 

Earnest money herewith :: ......... :·• ......... :.~ .. : ...... : ...................... : ........ : ...... , .... ,., ... ;. /b 1
1 

OLJD 

.. · Balance of puicha!!e price .............. ." ... :.: .... _ .•. : ........ :.: .. _. ... : ........ ~· .. _.; ....... _: .............. ::! /P ol l.J 1 00 2' -~ . 

• .~1~ as rouows:Jiq~ffaf{;'D' ~ ~!~~~, · · 

It is. unqerstood that: 

. ·, Seller will promptly refund earnest. money if"offer is ~Jected; · 
. •. . . . . . 

'• .. 

Seller at seller.' s e.--qx:nse shall furnish purchaser with an abstract of title or owner$5 title policy sho\\ing 
marketable title in the seller to the d~cribed real estate; ·.. . ·. . . . . . ' 

· :Seller~ to. ronvey d¢sal~ real e.state by WARRANTY~-·- .. . , 
:: 

.. : 

. ,· . Ta.-xes, ap.d. the installment of special 'aSSessments.'(if assum~ by the p~.h:as~f° for the current 'year shall .. · · . : . 

, .· . .. :. '.;'· .be prorated between tli~-s~ll~r an~purc~er~ of. p~o ?,-1?,lk 4,.d .. Q, .pad al(? 19: ]WeS .... 

. : . . -: · ... ~ossessi'on of the descnoed ieal ~te is to be delivered qn OT before 5 ·cz.pi rs f ol,D 19 .. 
Closiugtobe:.on-orbefore-.S,o.p1_ (5, -~O ~~l Cj · . . ,. -~. · 

• 4 • • 

Other-~nditions ~ (:J~ fl. 
l)}O~ .. · .. 

. .:·~ 

. ' . . : . . . " 

. B,~ 0-dA P-0:-1 ~ -~, 
.. . ~ . 

Date ·2~·:-J9 - a ·t)Jq . ~c~~- 01~ ·;··:.:f~ 
. . . : # d j h . 

. . ~. · Puichaser~ _L~ 

; . 
: 

I(We) hereby accept the offer and agree to sell the above d~cn'bed.property at the price and on the terms and 
conditions set forth above. . . . . . ., .· . . . . . . . . 

.. Dotc?J: /2~19 Seller~~· 

S~er ________________ _ 



This is in reference to the lot at 210 5th ave. 

Jack and Marie Freidt to make a down payment to Kristi 
Sample, August 20, 2019, if the sale of the lot is approved by 
city of Mandan. 

Closing date will be on or around September 15th 2019. 
Final payment to be made at that time. 

I ••~ 

Demolition of house and clean up of lot will be by October 31st 

2019 or sooner if required by the City of Mandan. 

Jack Freidt 
701426 7866 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  All new and renewal Class E liquor licenses must be 
approved by the Board of City Commissioners at time of application.   

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The application has been received and background 
checks have been run with no issues at this time.  Also fees have been collected.  The 
Harvest has had a Class E liquor license in the past, but choose to go the route of caterer’s 
permits instead of reapplying for liquor license. That option became cumbersome as 
several catering permits were being issued and they would like to reapply for Class E 
Liquor license once again. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Application is attached with further information in finance 
department. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $2,500.00 is the fee for the Class E liquor license for July 1, 2019 to 
June 30, 2020. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/A 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval contingent upon the establishment meeting all Fire 
Code, Health & Safety Code, and Building Inspections Codes and all property taxes paid.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:   I would ask that the board approve a renewal for Class E 
liquor license for Harvest LLC at 308 West Main Street.  Contingent upon the 
establishment meeting all Fire Codes, Health & Safety Code, Building Inspection Codes 
and all property taxes and fees are paid. 

MEETING DATE: August 9, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 20, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Renewal Class E Liquor License  

Consent No. 2 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider extension of closing date for the sale of 100 5th St. 
NW.  
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The buyers would like to extend the closing date 
through September to allow them to absorb the unforeseen costs associated with creating 
the title abstract.   
 
The original closing date was on or before August 30th.    
 
This is a relatively minor contractual amendment and staff recommends approval to 
accommodate the transaction.   
  
ATTACHMENTS:    
 
Exhibit 1 – Addendum to Purchase Agreement 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal    
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal   
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  This staff report and attachments have been reviewed and approved 
by City Attorney Brown.    
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Engineering and Planning recommend approval of the 
addendum as presented in Exhibit 1.     
 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 12, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Engineering and Planning Director 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Consider extension of closing date for the sale of 

100 5th St. NW  
  

 

  

Consent No. 3 

CITY DP 
MAKDAX 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Consider extension of closing date for the sale of 100 5th St. NW 
Page 2 of 2 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION(S): I move to approve the extension of the closing date for the 
sale of 100 5th St. NW as presented in Exhibit 1.      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



dotloop verified
08/12/19 4:55 PM CDT
TKJ6-YVTX-5S0X-G1WEClint A. Boyd

dotloop signature verification: dtlp.us/WsGJ-YfWY-YWxJ

EXHIBIT 1

ADDENDUM TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT# Jo o.3 B 
Date: 8L ::,._ },2-0 I 9 Page __ of __ 

I . I 

Agree as follows: 

e or 

The herein agreement, upon its execution by both parties, is herewith made an integral part of the 
rrementinned Pl JR CHASE AGBEFMENT with all "j"' conditions cemalnlng the same as wcitten. 

Purchaser Date Seller Date 

Purchaser Date Seller Date 

CENTURY 21 Morrison Realty (revised 2018) 

https://dtlp.us/WsGJ-YfWY-YWxJ
https://dtlp.us/WsGJ-YfWY-YWxJ


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider a budget amendment to the 2019 Municipal 
Court Budget. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Judge Kautzmann has requested a salary increase 
based upon her review of other cities in North Dakota. Judge Kautzmann has compared 
the Municipal Judge compensation in Mandan ($37,627) to that of Dickinson and Devils 
Lake as being similar in population and caseload. Dickinson’s Municipal Judge annual 
salary is $44,000 and Devils Lake is $49,048. Caseload for Criminal and Traffic in 
Mandan through May 2019 is 1,201, Dickinson, 1,108 and Devil’s Lake 664. 

In discussions with Mayor Helbling and Commissioner Larson (portfolio holder) the 
agreed upon increase is $2,500 as of July 1, 2019. Included in the preliminary budget for 
2020, is an additional increase of $2,500 as of January 1, 2020 and another $2,500 as of 
July 1, 2020. Therefore this request is simply for an amendment to the 2019 budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: n/a 

FISCAL IMPACT: Amendment to the 2019 Municipal Court budget of $2,500. The full 
amount of this increase may not affect the overall budget for the Municipal Court as the 
defense counsel pay will be dropping by $1,000/month beginning July 1. However the 
salary for the Municipal Court Judge would need to be adjusted. 

STAFF IMPACT: n/a 

LEGAL REVIEW: n/a 

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend amending the 2019 Municipal Court budget to 
increase the Municipal Judge salary by $2,500 effective July 1, 2019. 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 15, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Municipal Court 2019 Budget Amendment 

Consent No. 4 

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Municipal Court 2019 Budget Amendment 
Page 2 of 2 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to amend the 2019 Municipal Court budget to increase 
the Municipal Judge salary by $2,500 effective July 1, 2019. 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider accepting a loan from the Bank of North Dakota (BND) 
for the Southside Street Improvement Project. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  A BND Infrastructure loan was applied for last fall and 
awarded to the City of Mandan shortly thereafter. As part of the award process, the BND has 
retrieved more information from the city since that time. An important item related to this is the 
preference of the BND’s to know the specific amount we are borrowing for. Therefore, bids were 
received before formal execution of this loan acceptance. After some more communication on 
the loan particulars, the BND has now sent a letter of acceptance to the City of Mandan in order 
to signify agreement to the loan terms and conditions.    

ATTACHMENTS:  BND Infrastructure Revolving Loan Fund Letter  

FISCAL IMPACT:  The loan includes terms and conditions more favorable to the city than we 
could get through an open market loan. Notably, the loan’s interest rate is 2% and the term is for 
20 years. The loan will cover all costs borrowed to complete this project as the authorized 
amount is up to $6M, but we expect that we will need less after all costs come in and the other 
funds ($1.5M Prairie Dog funds and about $545K from the Water and Sewer Utility Fund) are 
applied. It will be paid back through special assessments to the benefitting properties.     

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All items forwarded to City Attorney for his review.  

RECOMMENDATION:  Accept the BND Loan.  

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the acceptance of the BND Infrastructure loan for the 
Southside Street Improvement Project (SID 213).  

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 15, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: Bank of North Dakota Infrastructure Loan 

Acceptance for the Southside SID.  

Consent No. 5 

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Bank of North Dakota Infrastructure Loan Acceptance for the Southside SID. 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 
 
 

1 

BND 
pr, BU 5 ~U~ _.J.OU Mt!mo1h,1 ~,,..,. 

~1<.11 1• I llf1 <;llSOo -'.otl9 

11(10 J.i .. •- r 

1tuu ~66 ,uau · ·, 
/td ~I'"' itm11 IOOYEARS · l 919-2019 

/\.ug,rat!I, 201ll 

CITY OF MANDA .. 
W.I 2Nll /\Ve r-No/ 
MANDAN NO 5855•\ 

Deer CITY OF MI\NDl',N 

On Al1911!1t 7, 2019. tt,,, BanJ< oi ~,!~ Oai,,l.a (BNDla• AdminoMlOr (or 11\e lnlrga,l'\lcture RmroNing Lila!\ F\md cstJ . hed unde, 
NOCC 6-09-49, a~l)fo\led s !oan, to CITY OF M,t,Nb"1N <t!l<ltll lho term• and oond~lons sot !oftrl In IMI leUer, 

A. 

g 

C 

D, 

F 

G 

H. 

!lQBROV'IER. 

TOTALl.OAN 

~ 

INTEREST Mli;: 

~ 

BEFAXMf!NT TERMS· 

~ 

PROGRAM CON . Tl 

CITY OF MANDAN 

3~ 00~ ,UOO 00 

20,00Ye~ 

AJ lea•! annua principal,...., .,,.,esI, based o 20-yaa, •nlllrUtol!l>n to be delamiloed In 
co~siJ!laljon .,II born>m,r .and oond mun.al 

Oafinit1•e hnp1m>•;rno11l W~rr•n1 Senea 2019 

Al l fees ,md acllltll cost,; 11,011rred • i connociDOn wlUI the io;,o ~pplleo!lon and loan closing must bo paf,; by lhe orrower. 
2 A resollAlo~ at gavemlng body m1'!11 oo ptlWIUOd, ~'-'l~QCl.lng the awropriate alfb:Jrji) lo f>orrO'\t ~nd en,cuta, an bchalJ 

<ll tbe Oomiwe, 
Loan furul,; arc to bo dop~1ted 11'!0 an ac<:ount that wlll a l~•m to be rl'Oni1<11ed cJDS<lfy A dJs.burse,r1 • lrnm 111€' 
acoo11nt, 10<1~ Wlln sup~ing dacumeritalion, art l<> be ltJcl<ed by tne Bor;OWII, 8N!;! ma)' req."ile that ttie &rrO'lll!• 
pro,i~e exact •=nf'"ll a,; lo IM use of the f\Jad• 01 s ome po1m in 1h~ Mure. 
Booowor Will a111>1o•e ~nd !JJ!ln ewi dn,w raqlJeSt. T~e Clt:w/ req\fest s to be tertlfi d (!i.ig1wd) bl' •~~ g<o/ecl 
eng\~ee@rthlt.,.,. end 1he Bor=; • au1l1"r,.ed orh<.>er and aebm,~so to BND 0,13, Cenlll~e of Req11,s •,on 

!.i The Sorrows, is reauircd lo P'(O'llide e'/klence lhet lhe securi\"/ 1• is.$Ut:d In ;1c,::ordonce wiU, the NDCC 
fl, All doCll'M »Uon ,wl be dra!ti,d by BND counsel i<l'id l)[Ollldell ta Iha Bom:,wer's coun~ rot""''"'" 
7 BOtroitler to OCl!lpleie ancl re1um lo BJ'fD Ille enclosed Advance and f' aymcrol OplJOO$ farm PRIOR to lundina, 

~D.IIN QONDITIONS 

ll1e projllci will l)O 0011mrucI,;,d to comply ~h all Arnc,11cims wl\h Olsabllllies regu!aliaro, and teqLl!fflmenta per U,e No<1l1 
oak01• Deoortmeni of l ransport..-ior, 

In alfw!ion lhe ra11c1,,\11g oondlUon~ p<l't>aOOnt m,J\St a!M ~ ~~tlsJied In,. manner salisfaclory 1o l'lNn .~ ll~le/1111~~ In illicS• l'3 

dis~ton 
1. [he laen documonu; aro satlsfac:wry 1n rorm and ••b.lanoo to eNn ~ttermftlt;<! "1 \15 ·sole d!llcrotlM enl) h ~e been 

agn!Gd lo ~"° e;:eeuted bY the oaligers and ,my NX!Uir v l~ •r<I p<Jlil••· 
1, 6ot1c;,1>r w,11 nolily BND ol an1 ad~tse cn~ngo In the coodil:!on o, ape talion hn~nclal or alherw,sa onha ~om,- O< 

"'IY guarantor& (co\lUc\NCI'; "oblige~"} h• • accurr,,d. 
Z. BOlro-..er ,11,i11 prOVl(la any dOGUrnenl,; and assurances deemed neoessary b)' BNO, 

CQMMITME T EJ<PIRATIQN: i, th is com1 Nment i, M1 drl>W1'1 upon by A1.,gus~ 7, 2020 BNO reaarYBS lbe ng~t lo nee! I~ 
cammi ment wilhoul rui1M, not,flr.allrm 10 you, Any l\'l•1"'6i (or m.odme~l,ons. or mar,ges to thi• 00f1lmllm nl mu,1 ,ie •Uollllfted, in 'ffliting, 
to ElND ro, app...,.~I 

---- - --- --



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Bank of North Dakota Infrastructure Loan Acceptance for the Southside SID. 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 
 
 
 

IMPORTANT CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Loan Funding Email, 
AdvanceslPaymenls Ema,I; 
AdvanC<!slPayme nts Number: 
Adv•nces/Payments Fax Number: 

BNDLoanF11ndjng@nd_ go:y 
BNDLoanOperalions@ng gov 
800.472.2166 ext 328.5666 or 701.328..5666 
701.3285631 

BND will Cllldd for any advonces and wul apply any payments received al this Bank Defore 3"30 p.m (CST). Telephone, fax or emall 
nottflcations are acceptable. 
BND teseives lhe right to cancel tnis commitmont 1f tl\e conditions pn,oodent lisle~ above are not satisfied prlc1 to the commitment 
expln,tlon date set ovt in this letter. This commttment shall become effective upon your written acceptance by signing and returning tnls 
lelle1 and I W-9 (Request for Taxpayer ldenllfication Number and Certi~eallon). 

This oommltmenl shall be~ome effective upon your wriuen acoeptance by signin'1 and returning this letter by August 21 , 2019 Any 
1equest for modifications Qr chaoges to IJlis oommflmenl must be submitted to BND ln writing for approval. 

Document Imaging and E!oci•OQIC Transactions. All parties hereby acknowledge 1he receipt of a copy of lhls Agreement and all other 
loan docume ts, Bank may, on betialf of parliie:s, create a mlcrofllm or optical c;:Sisk or othef eleclrcnic tillage of this Agreement and any or 
all of the loan documents. Ban~ may store me electronic Image of this Agreement and loan documents in Its eteotronlc rorm and tllen 
destroy the paper original as pattof Banl<:'s norma l business pradices. with the electronic image deemed lo be an orig nal. 

Eacn person signing U,is Agreemen1 represents and warrants tnat he or she is tj~ly author1zed and has legal ca pacity to execute and 
deliver this Agreement. Each party represents and warrants to the other that tho execution and delivery of the Agreement and lhe 
performance of such party'$ obligation hereunder have been duly autMrized, and that lhe Agreement is a valid and legal ag/eement 
binding on such pany and enforceable In accordance with 11s terms. 

Sincerely, 

!t~~ 
Business Banke, 
Economic Development & Lar~• Projects 

Accepted thls _ _ ______ aay ol 

Estimated Fundln Date: 

CITY OF MANDAN 

By; 

Tit le: 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the Special Event Permit for the 
Mandan Golden Age Club Car Show  

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The Mandan Golden Age Club has an annual car 
show. This year it will be held on September 9th from 5pm to 7:30pm. The car show is 
held on the one way street which runs inside the housing area of Liberty Heights. The 
portion used for the car show is 15th St NW from the intersection with 3rd Ave NW, east 
to the intersection of 2nd Ave NW and 14th St NW. (see attached map) This street is 
typically only used for access to the housing development and so the impact of its closure 
is minimal. Police, Fire, Public Works and Engineering departments have approved the 
events application.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: Special Event Permit Application and attachments. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None   
 
STAFF IMPACT: none 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: To approve the Mandan Golden Age Club Car Show 2019 
Special Event Permit Application for September 9, 2019. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the Mandan Golden Age Club Car Show 
2019 Special Event Permit Application for September 9, 2019. 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019   
PREPARATION DATE: August 14, 2019   
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police Department   
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Jason Ziegler   
PRESENTER: Chief Jason Ziegler   
SUBJECT: Mandan Golden Age Club Car Show   

Consent No. 6 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider expanding the 90 minute parking zones to include 
the 400blk of East Main Street and the west side of the 100blk of 2nd Ave NE from the 
alley south to East Main Street.  

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The Mandan Parking Board held a meeting on July 
30th, 2019. Two requests were made to the board to add to the areas of 90 minute 
restricted parking.  
Jerry Meidinger from Napa Auto Parts, asked to have 90 minute parking on the 400blk of 
East Main St.  
Dan Anderson of Legacy Law Firm will be building on the corner of 2nd Ave NE and East 
Main St. He asked that an area which is now a grass boulevard, be turned into parking. 
He also asked that the new parking area have some 90 minute parking restrictions. This 
new parking area would be on the 100blk of 2nd Ave NE on the west side of the street and 
north of the alley.  
The Mandan Parking Authority Board reviewed and discussed the requests.  
Regarding the change to the 400blk of East Main, they asked that Parking Officer Decker 
check with the other businesses on the block to see if they had issues with the change. 
They voted to approve the 90 minute parking zone contingent on the other business 
owners not objecting to the change. Parking Officer Decker spoke with people at Top 
Dog, Design Inc, Bisman Cards and NW Tire, which are the other businesses on the 
block. They had no objections.  
Regarding the request for the grass boulevard on the west side of the 100blk of 2nd Ave 
NE to be made into parking, the Mandan Parking Authority Board voted to approve 
turning it into parking with 1 handicapped parking spot and 7, 90 minute restricted 
parking spots. They also voted to make the parking perpendicular parking on advice of 
the City Engineer.  

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 14, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police Department 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief of Police J. Ziegler 
PRESENTER: Chief of Police J. Ziegler 
SUBJECT: Expansion of 90 minute parking zones 

 

  

Consent No. 7 

CITY DP 
MAKDAX 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: 08/20/2019 
Subject: Expansion of 90 minute parking zones 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Minutes from the July 30, 2019 Parking Authority Board meeting and 
map.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Signs to be purchased and cost of installation. 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Public works personnel to install signs 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  To approve the Mandan Parking Authority Board’s 
recommendations for expansion of the 90 minute parking zones. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the Mandan Parking Authority Board’s 
recommendations for expansion of the 90 minute parking zones. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PARKING BOARD AUTHORITY MEETING 
JULY 30, 2019 

A meeting of the Mandan Parking Authority was held in the Ve rte rans' Room at City Hall at 7:45 a.m. 

Members attending: Edgar Oliveira, Julie Haibeck, Larry Goetzfridt, Al Kuntz and Crstal Tretbar. Others 
in attendance: City Administrator Jim Neubauer, Business Development Director Ellen Huber, Planning 
and Engineering Director Justin Froseth, Commissioner Dennis Rohr, Police Chief Jason Ziegler, Fire Chief 
Steve Nardella, Parking Enforcement Allan Decker and Records Technician Cheryl Kroh 
Guests in attendance: Jerry Meidinger - Napa Auto Parts, Dr. Eve Kostelecky - Every Eye, Dan Anderson 
- Legacy Law Firm, Dot Frank - Cappucino on Collins and Lee Pierce - Icon Architects 

Meeting Agenda : 

1. INTRODUCTIONS 
a. Board members, city personnel and others in attendance introduce themselves. 

2. MINUTES 
a. Review and consider for approval the minutes from the March 22, 2019 meeting. 

Motion made by Julie Haibeck to approve the minutes and seconded by Al Kuntz. 
Motion carried. 

3. OLD BUSINESS 
a. None 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Napa wants to request time parking along Main Street in front of their business (400 E 

Main) Wants enforcement done also 
1. Jerry Meidinger from Napa Auto Parts would like consideration of 90 minute 

restricted parking along the business at 400 E Main on Main Street. Since his 
business has grown and there are large delivery trucks, it makes it difficult to get 
to his business as well as a traffic hazard. Other businesses in the area park all 
day in front of his business. Allan Decker who is Parking Enforcement was asked 
to speak to the other businesses about the 90 minute restricted signs. Motion 
made to make the block 90 minute parking contingent upon other businesses 
not objecting by Al Kuntz and seconded by Crystal Tretbar. Motion carried. 

b. Request by Every eye to have a handicap parking space on the west side of 2nd Avenue 
NW. Currently only a handicap sign on east side. (316 W Main) Also Kids in Motion 
(306 W Main) is requesting a handicap sign on that block 
1. Dr Eve Kostelecky requested a handicap space on the west side of street by her 

business. She also spoke for another company, Kids in Motion, who was not 
present at the meeting. Due to mobility issues of the clients, a handicap space 
would be helpful. If handicap space is implemented it would take 2 to 3 regular 
parking spaces and the street is usually full already. It was decided to wait until 
the 2020 Main Street improvement is done before proceeding with the request. 



c. Dan Anderson from Legacy Law Firm plans on constructing a two-story building at the 
corner of Main Street and 2nd Avenue NE. Requesting the boulevard to be turned into 
angle parking and having the area enforced 
1. Dan Anderson from Legacy Law Firm requested to have the grassy area 

removed and angle parking spaces put in place with 90 minute restricted 
parking. Motion made by Al Kuntz to remove grassy area with perpendicular 
parking spaces and seconded by Julie Haibeck. Motion carried. 
Also requested were 9 parking spaces to be placed where the grass will be 
removed. It will be 7 parking spaces and 1 handicapped space (this takes 2 
regular parking spaces). Handicap space will be placed on the south side of the 
block and 7 parking spaces will start at the south side and go to the north side. 
Al Kuntz made the motion to have perpendicular parking spaces and 90 minute 
parking restriction on all parking spaces and seconded by Julie Haibeck. Motion 
carried. 

d. Dot Frank requested to have angle parking in front of her business Cappucino on Collins 
(100 blk of Collins) 
1. Dot Frank owner of Cappucino on Collins requested to have angle parking in 

front of her business instead of the parallel parking. Fire Chief Steve Nardella 
said that the fire trucks having to use Collins Avenue, it makes it difficult for 
them to make the turn. The Main Street improvement will start in 2020 and 
with the bulb-outs and not sure how they will impact the situation wait until the 
project is done. Justin Froseth also stated to wait until next year. No action 
taken on this request for now. 

e. Update on the Main Street improvement project slated for 2020 
1. Justin Froseth gave a short update on the Main Street improvement project 

which will begin next year. Main Street will only have 3 lanes instead of 4 lanes. 
Bulb-outs and decorations will be a part of the improvement. For now 10th 

Avenue NW has no traffic lights and this is on a trial basis. With the bulb-outs 
there will be a loss of 14 to 15 parking spaces on the north side of Main but will 
gain 50 parking spaces on the south side of Main. 

5. OTHER BUSINESS 
a. None 

6. NEXT MEETING 
a. Next meeting will be held in October and everyone will be notified of the date later 

7. ADJOURN 
a. Motion by Julie Hai beck to adjourn the meeting and seconded by Al Kuntz. Adjourned 

at 9:06 a.m. 





 
Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider approving Change Order G-02 to the 30” Sunset 
Reservoir Water Transmission Line Improvements project.  

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The general construction contractor for the project, 
SJ Louis, has requested compensation for extra work needed to satisfactorily complete up 
to the first milestone of the project. The first milestone was completed in December 
which effectively completes the new pipe install from Highway 1806 to the Water 
Treatment Facility. That stretch of our transmission line, through the refinery property, 
was our most concerning segment given the groundwater concerns and the history of 
failure, especially since 2016, being troublesome.  
 
The nature of the change orders are primarily due to change in field conditions from what 
was expected, especially as the contractor executed construction related to the Water 
Treatment Facility sitework and tying into the facility. It is not uncommon for conditions 
to vary from what is expected in these situations as the engineer is relying on record 
drawings from many years ago to get a complete picture of past infrastructure installation 
and those are not always correct as was the case here.  
 
The contractor’s original request called for a total of nearly $129K extra for the work 
performed. Through extensive correspondence and several meetings, city staff and the 
contractor have agreed to what we believe is a fair compromise of about $92K and no 
penalty for Liquidated Damages. Without reaching a fair compromise, we would likely 
need to go to mediation which would add procedural costs in the form of mitigation and 
lawyer fees.  
 
Correspondence and invoices to backup this change order are available upon request (52 
pages).    
 

 
MEETING DATE: 

 
August 20, 2019 

PREPARATION DATE: August 20, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: Mandan 30” Sunset Reservoir Transmission Line, 

Change Order G-02.  

Consent No. 8 - ADDED ON AUGUST 20, 2019 

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Mandan 30” Sunset Reservoir Transmission Line, Change Order G-02. 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:   
1) Change Order summary and acceptance sheet. 
2) Change Order table of requests vs. staff negotiated.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Previous change orders are just over $6K. With this change order, the 
total amount of change orders amounts to over $98K. Change orders as a percentage of 
this project if this is approved come to 3.0%. That is a reasonable percentage for a project 
of this nature to date. It is within the project’s total estimated contingency amount.  
 
We still have to complete pipe replacement on the west side of Highway 1806. Typically 
one would expect a better chance of change orders coming with the site piping near the 
tie in points. We are buttoned up now with the Water Treatment Facility tie-in point.  
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  The City Attorney’s office was actively engaged in conversations 
during the discussion to arrive at this agreed upon amount.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Change order.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve Change Order G-02 to the contract with SJ 
Louis for the General Construction contract of the Mandan 30” Sunset Reservoir 
Transmission Line Improvements project.   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Mandan 30” Sunset Reservoir Transmission Line, Change Order G-02. 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 
 
 
 

I 
Joly 11, lOl.9 

Ml'NllilOII JI} -)mU~ Hll!'lsl?,mir r m~.mlll-FtNI 

l~!tl\fll'{JVt;'ltt!i'lll'i 

ouq1orlen o[Ch "n.gg 

Change Order 
No. G-02 

V-irloui titl.d coM[tlo"'s ldt!ntifll!d itlld r;falms m1:1de-dlmrt:1 courA: of cofl'PJ1lct::ktn t,l!I!' ltta,Md.s!llmn'r~ ih~ei). CoKarid tlrnt adfustmetih, pr!!!!.en.kd W'eTC neJUtia'Ld ruer the'"oune ot 

ITMl'tlr,g:i: :atid JJ00n@r;,iills bietwel:!n Contildl.or, owner. and En1lneer. 

Item D@Wlpllon 

1 NegatlatlaJI, of SupplemeMai Pay Request. 001•007, 009, ond OJ3-0J 7; Wmit Change Dir•c!ive Gl, 

Bedding (0$t Claim, M//e$tone 111 Potential L01. 

$ 3,277,500.00 

lncn!:JJlit fmrn P,l!!~ti9IV 1f1Pr0\l:ed ChanseQrdiets, 

Ne. 00 toNo.. Oi 

$ o,0BU7 

3,283,581 • .l 7 

s 91,303.()() 

$ 3,375,IJl/4 .17 

..,, 

fJal~ tlo. '441 11001 Edltlool 

$ubs.tlllllial ~Ompll?'tioll: 

lh'.oallf for fin .i i pa~nt: 

Total t t Che nee: CO-G-02 

.&ncrHU! fftlffl ,ptt\llOLHll(l:J)JH1)\lll!d Clurqe Otd!t! 

Ne. ,() W, Nc. 01 

,\i,.11,1 t.u111•1i.all '1Qnt,plctkin: 

lflebd"y for lnil l ~r,mr111, 

comnct Tlm,115. prior tothk cn.1r.w-eorditl': 

S&.ilB~antl;d romp,\etlol'I: 

Read'I' for fl nal prymeR.t: 

n~tt.as• Tim~ ot U't lr Ch•nec Or-tht r: 

S-Jl.nl..mlal COl'll'lf)'ltUO,,,; 

Rl!Ocly fortlfl:a l Piil~ent: 

Cot'lttiii:~ Tfrr. es wtth all :;,;iprOW!d ctungl!! Orders: 

Si;b:!;tDl"ltlil campl~rlon.: 

fle"dy fot fina l 1),1\iml!ill • 

AC(fPliD: 

•• 
.., ----- ------~-

o, ... 

Pr1p.1n:d 'by th ! rri9Jnt:~n• Jofrn Canitract Dac:1.1m1:nu Corn111latu.and 1m dc:in1d br tfi• 

~od1~d G.er1e:t.al co"t~'1;gn c l Mil!'rlfl and 1M Con:11 tructlan .Sped{ica1ian1, 1111111.t\Jtt-.. 

$92,303,()() 

$92,303.00 

November 20, 2019 

lune, 15, 2020 

a 

November 22, 2019 

Jun• 15, 2020 

0 
0 

November 12, 2019 

June 15, 2020 

P'qe 1of l 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Mandan 30” Sunset Reservoir Transmission Line, Change Order G-02. 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 

Project: 
Engineer: 
Owner: 

SPR 

SPR-001 

SPR-002 

SPR-003 

SPR-004 

SPR-005 

SPR-006 

SPR-007 

SPR-009 

SPR-013 

SPR-014 

SPR-015 

SPR-016 

SPR-017 

WCD-Gl 

M ilestone #1 

Bedding 

Change Request Summary Sheet- Change Order G-02 

Mandan , ND - 30 " Sunset Reservo ir Wate r Transm ission Line Im provem ents 

Advanced Eng ineering and Env ironmenta l Services , Inc (AE2S) 

City of M and an 

Requested 

Description Change$ 

Vac•Truck Excavat ion to located exist ing util ity l ines. $ 5,028.93 

Exist ing Unmarked Electrica l Li nes $ 3,339.70 

Existing Conc ret e Casing Repa irs $ 961.64 

Re moval of Concrete Thrust Blocks $ 15,076.58 

Re mova l of Concrete Thrust Blocks $ 16,469.00 

Re mova l of Concrete Thrust Blocks $ 1,763.47 

Re mova l of Concrete Thrust Block Mate rial from Jobsite $ 1,741.76 

Existi ng Concret e Casing Repa irs $ 1,207.12 

Existing Concret e Casing Repa irs $ 865.65 

Refinery Shutdown De lay and Concret e Mat erial $ 1,521.25 

Fill Exist ing PCCP w it h Flowa ble Fill $ 4,860.53 

Addit ional Excavat ion and Backfi ll - M ismatched Alignment $ 4,196.99 

Addit ional Excavat ion and Backfi ll - M ismatched Alignment $ 4,196.99 

Addit ional Excavat ion and Backfi ll - M ismatched Alignment $ 58,573.33 

Potent ial 18 days of LDs at $1500/ day. $ 

SJ L bedding cost claim. $ 9,000.00 

Tot als $ 128,802.94 $ 

Negot1atea 

Change$ 

N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
92,303.00 

• • Additiona l days app lied toward Milest one #1 completion dat e . 

Days Requested Negotiated Days 

1.00 N/A 

0.50 N/A 
0.00 N/A 

1.00 N/A 
1.00 N/A 
0.50 N/A 
0.00 N/A 

0.50 N/A 

0.00 N/A 
0.50 N/A 

0.50 N/A 

0.50 N/A 
0.50 N/A 

1. 50 N/A 

N/ A N/A 

N/ A N/A 
8 Days 5 days 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Planning and Engineering office received a variance 
request to allow two driveways at this residential property whose sum exceed the 
maximum allowable width of 36-feet. The following outlines the request as compared to 
code language for consideration.   

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   
 
August 16th update: In response to commission’s concerns about their plans 
conflicting with neighborhood covenants, the Homeowners Association (HOA) has 
been in communication with the Engineering Department. They have expressed 
their approval of the second driveway as presented. However, as of the time of 
writing this agenda document, they have not concluded approval of the entire plan. 
They were striving towards a decision on the entire plan by the August 20th 
Commission meeting. More information may be coming between the August 16th 
distribution of the packet and the August 20th meeting. We will share should we 
receive word from the HOA.   
 
Subsection (5) of section 115-5-4 of the Mandan municipal code states the below: 
 
“(5) Residential lots. Each lot may have one or two driveways. The combined total width 
of the driveway or driveways shall be no greater than 36 feet, plus any required flares, 
measured at the curb line. If there are two driveways, they must be separated by a distance 
of at least twenty-four feet measured at the curb line. If there is a fire hydrant located 
between the driveways, the twenty-four feet shall be measured from the fire hydrant to the 
edge of a driveway apron not counting any required apron flare. Except for properties 
with adjoining driveways that are built up to the property line, the driveway apron must 
be placed a distance from the property line sufficient to allow for construction of a flare.” 
 
Below are the variance requirements under section 105-1-12 of city code and city staff 
comments under each in italics.   

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 15, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: 4200 Lakewood Drive SE Driveway Variance 

Old Business No. 1 

~ ~ 
CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 2 of 7 
 

Subject:  4200 Lakewood Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 
 
(1) Variances.  
 
a. On appeal from an order, requirement, decision or determination made by an 
administrative official, the board of adjustment may vary or adjust the strict application of 
any of the requirements of this chapter in the case of an exceptionally irregular, narrow, 
shallow or steep lot or other exceptional physical or topographical condition, by reason of 
which the strict application of the provisions of the chapter would result in unnecessary 
hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the land or building 
involved, but in no other case.  
 
b. No adjustment in the strict application of any provisions of this chapter shall be granted 
by the board of adjustment unless it finds that:  
 

1. There are special circumstances or conditions, fully described in the findings of 
the board, applying to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought, which 
circumstances or conditions are peculiar to such land or building, and do not apply 
generally to land or buildings in the neighborhood, and have not resulted from any act of 
the applicant taken subsequent to the adoption of this chapter, whether in violation of the 
provisions of the chapter, or not;  
 
Building on the west side of the existing garage on the western side of the lot is not an 
option because of a storm sewer easement and the storm sewer pipe that resides 
underground and within that easement. In the Lakewood area, there may be 10-20 such 
easements within a couple hundred lots, but they are not common. If not for that storm 
sewer, the applicant has stated that they would have built on the west side and made use 
of the existing driveway.     
 

2. For reasons fully set forth in the findings of the board, the circumstances or 
conditions so found are such that the strict application of the provisions of this chapter 
would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of said land or building, and the 
granting of the variance is necessary for the reasonable use of the land or building, and 
that the variance as granted by the board is the minimum variance that will accomplish 
the relief sought by the applicant;  
 
Our office does not believe that the strict application of the driveway dimensional rules 
would deprive the applicant reasonable use of the property. However, we concede that 
this is a subjective criteria check and would invite the applicant to speak on the hardship 
they would endure if not granted.     
 

3. The grant of the variance will be in harmony with the general purposes and 
intent of this chapter, and not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental 
to the public welfare. 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 3 of 7 
 

Subject:  4200 Lakewood Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 
Our office does not believe this request to be in harmony with the general purpose of the 
rules relating to allowable driveway dimensions. It would limit our ability to put snow in 
the boulevard, the main intent of the driveway width rules. That concern is mitigated by 
the width of the lot though. Therefore, we do not see the granting of the variance to be 
injurious or detrimental to the public.  
 
In conclusion, the Planning and Engineering Department finds that this request does not 
strictly meet the criteria needed to grant. We believe it is appropriate for the applicant to 
speak of the hardship if not granted however as our department cannot fully and 
accurately express that component.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Application 
2) Area Map 
3) Exhibit from applicant showing plan 
4) Pictures of house from street 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All items forwarded to City Attorney for his review.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Deny the variance request because denial does not result in 
“…unnecessary hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the land or 
building…” 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to deny the variance request because denial does not 
result in “…unnecessary hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the 
land or building…” 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 4 of 7 
 

Subject:  4200 Lakewood Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF MANDAN 
Develo 

Mi or PlaL_ ($~00) 
Preliminary P,lat up to 20 acres ($350) 

Preliminary f'lat mote than 20 acres [$400J Zorn~ Ch:mge with Mfnor Plat $4.00 

Fina l Plat up to 20 l'ots i$3S0} Vacat ion ($SOD} 
Fina l Plat 21 to 40 lots 475 
Fina l Plat mare than 40 lots $700 

.. 
Olfll:eUseOntv 

Oate Received: I Jnltials: I ,;: .... e Paid: Ls ' n~~~ 

Notrci~ in oape,r I Mailed to nei"ihbors I P&Z me11ting 
I Aporoved I Approved with conditions: 
I P@nied I 

Updated 1/1/2019 

N:\P!..ANNING & ZONtNG\Oe\lelopment Application - fon'l.lary W19.docx 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 5 of 7 
 

Subject:  4200 Lakewood Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 6 of 7 
 

Subject:  4200 Lakewood Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

.~ 
1V 

~ 

Legal Description: Lot 11 , Bloc::k 2, Lakewood 3rd Addition 
Address: 4200 Lakewood Dr. SE 
Owner; John & Kathryn Sauber 

SAUBER 411 27th St, NW, Sul~ B 
E M G I If !l E R 1 M G P, 0 , Sox 3 99 

M~ ndan, NO 585~ 

Site Drawing 

Driveway Variance Request 

Exhibit 1 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 7 of 7 
 

Subject:  4200 Lakewood Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 
 

 
 

 



New Business No. 1 

Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

WHERE T H E WEST BEGINS 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 2, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Department 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Kimberly Markley 
PRESENTER: Lila Teigen, Real Property Appraiser III 
SUBJECT: Application for Property Tax Exemption for 

Improvements to Commercial & Residential 
Buildings North Dakota Century Code 57-02.2 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider a three year exemption for construction of an 
addition to a structure pursuant to North Dakota Century Code 57-02.2. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: James B Mellon, Midway Lanes INC. , is applying 
for a three year exemption for the construction of a 8000 foot square addition to the 
structure located at 3327 Memorial Highway. The 40' x 200' addition will be constructed 
on the east side of the building. The addition will consist of more amusement area, pizza 
shop and rental space for Northern Trophy. This parcel is also known as Lot 2A of Lot 2 
Block 1 Midway 12th Addition, parcel #65-6100142. 

ATTACHMENTS: Application, 2015 City of Mandan Guidelines for Property Tax 
Exemption of Improvements to Commercial & Residential Buildings, plan and current 
picture of east side of building 

ESTIMATED FISCAL IMPACT: The value of the addition is estimated to have a value 
of$ 1,144,300. Based on that amount, with the 2018 mill levy of 265 mills, the estimated 
exemption is $15,174 for all taxing entities and $3,674 for the City of Mandan per year. 
The actual exemption will be subject to prevailing market values and actual mill rates 
during the three-year exemption period. 

STAFF IMP ACT: NI A 

LEGAL REVIEW: City of Mandan Municipal Code 111-2-9 requires: "Every building 
open to public use that has received the benefit of public funds from the city shall provide 
for the installation of an automatic door for at least one main entrance to the building." 
Reviewed by Assistant City Attorney Amy Oster. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject Application for Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to Commercial & 
Residential Buildings North Dakota Century Code 57-02.2 
Pa e 2 of2 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the Application for Property Tax Exemption for 
Improvements to Commercial & Residential Buildings North Dakota Century Code 57-
02.2 located at 3327 Memorial Hwy. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: A motion to approve the Application for Property Tax 
Exemption for Improvements to Commercial & Residential Buildings North Dakota 
Century Code 57-02.2 for the building addition to 3327 Memorial Hwy. 



Application For Property Tax Exemption For Improvements 
To Commercial And Residential Buildings 

N.D.C.C. ch. 57-02.2 

(File with the city assessor or county director of tax equalization) 

Property Identification 

1. Legal description of the property for which exemption is claimed LOT 2A OF LOT 2 BLOCK l , MIDWAY 

12TH ADDITION 

2. Address of Property 3327 MEMORIAL HIGHWAY 

3. Parcel Number 65-6100142 --------------
4. Name of Property Owner MIDWAY LNS INC/JAMES B MELLON Phone No. _ _ _ _ ___ _ 

5. Mailing Address of Property Owner 1205 6TH AVE NE, MANDAN, ND 58554 

Description Of Improvements For Exemption 

6. Describe type of renovating, remodeling, alteration or addition made to the building for which exemption is 

claimed (attach additional sheets if necessary). 8,000 SQ. FT. MORE AMUSEMENT AREA, 

PIZZA SHOP AND RENTAL SPACE FOR NORTHERN TROPHY 

7. Building permit No. ________ _ 8. Year built (residential property) _ _ _ _ ___ _ 

9. Date of commencement of making the improvements 09/ 15/2019 

10. Estimated market value of property before the improvements $ _ ___ ____ _ 

11. Cost of making the improvement (all labor, material and overhead) $ ____ 2_,0_0_0_,0_0_0_._0_0 

12. Estimated market value of property after the improvements $ 

Applicant's Certification And Signature 

13 . I certify that the information contained in this application is correct to the best ofmy knowledge. 

Applican~ ~ ~ ': ~ • ~ Date ~ - '7 ~ ( 'f 
Assessor's Determination And Signature 

14. The assessor/county director of tax equalization finds that the improvements described in this application 

do~ do not O meet the qualifications for exemption for the following reason(s) : 

Assessor/Director of Tax Equalization Date jl-q, ~tJ/9 
Action Of Governing Body 

15 . Action taken on this application by the governing board of the county or city: Approved 0 Denied 0 
Approval is subject to the following conditions: _____ ____________ ____ _ _ 

Exemption is allowed for years 20_, 20_, 20_, 20_, 20_. 

Chairperson Date 

24640 (Rev. 6-01) 



APPLICATION & CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 
CONTiNUATION SHEET 

A 

I 
ITEM 
NO. 

1. 
1a. 
'lb . 

2 . 
3. 
4. 
5 . 
6. 
7. 

' 8. 
9. 
10. 
11. 

12. 
13. 

Ba 
13b 
13c 
14. 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES - New addition, Midway Lanes 
Mandan , ND 

Contractor: Straightway Construction, Inc. 
PO Box 2121, Bismarck, ND 58502 

B 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

General conditions 
Enoineerinq 
Continoencv 

Demo 
Earthwork/Excavation 
E)(terior imprnvements 

Concrete 8, Masonrv 
Finish carpentry 
Exterior finishes: EIFS. Roofing, Siding, Roof & exterior wall insulation 

Doors & Windows- 2 hr fire-rnted openinqs 
Finishes: Wall framinq & Drvwall 
Acousticals, Ceilings,Flooring & Painting 
Toilet pa11itions/Accessories & Kitchen equipment 
Soecial Construction - PEMB, Structural steel 
Mechanical: 

Plumbinq 

HVAC 
Fire sprinklers 

Electrical 

TOTALS THIS PAGE 
CUMULATIVE TOTALS 

C 

SCHEDULED 
VALUE 

42,077.84 
42,200.00 
60,000.00 
14,228.07 
19,872.83 
13,872.83 

105,474.08 
17,397.1 'I 

158,578.54 
157,226.94 
93,166.70 
94,847.55 
25,482.30 

162,499.48 

37,878 .61 

117,445.09 
20,793.06 

104,046.24 

1,287,087.27 

PAGE 2 OF 
APPLICATION NO: 

APPLICATION DATE: 

PERIOD TO: 

ARCHITECT'S PROJECT NO: 
CONTRACT 19-001 

D E F G H I 
WORK COMPLETED MATERIALS TOTAL 

FROM PREVIOUS !THIS PERIOC PRESENTLY COMPLETED % 
APPLICATIONS STORED AND STOREC G/C BALANCE TO RETAINAGE 

(NOT IN TO DATE FINISH (C-G) 
DORE) (D+E+F) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 



(;, ~ ~ '-1£ l ~ 

,•0 

I 
1· 
11 ~ 

~ 
ct 

2/ ·~ l 
'~ 

]! it 
fl !, 

I 
11 

1 ; ~ ------

J I 
i7: 

11 
t; 'El 

~ 
~ 

0 ~ 1 I 
r., 

I 

I 

-1 

0 

I 

·I 

0 -

0 



CAMAvision® Sketch, printed on 8/8/2019 at 11:24 AM 
Parcel: 65-6100142, Route: 000-000-000, Address: 3327 MEMORIAL HWY SE 

Scale: 1 "=50', Sketch 2 of 2, Private: No 

Created: Thursday, August 8, 2019@8:21:14 AM, Last Modified: Thursday, August 8, 2019@ 11:24:11 AM 

Title: 2020, Author(s): 

Description: 

147 

1S3 

62 

I ,60 ioj 

NORTH 

7 13 7 

MIDWAY 
[58740] 

126 

178'7" 

s' t5·s· 
AET[:i\rR 24 

187'6" 

,,,.- 40 
------ ------

194'~ 

2019STL 
BLDG 
[7989] 

40 

200 



MIDWAY LANES INC. 

Taken from the NE corner of the property. 

Taken from the SE corner of the property. 



MIDWAY LANES INC 

AREA SOUTH OF MIDWAY LANES-WILL BE TURNED INTO PARKING 



CITY 01' 
MANIIAX 
" WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 

City of ~fand;m 
Assessing Dep;u-lrneitl 
20.5 2'"' Ave. i\vV 
:'vfandau, :-.ID 585.'.i·I, 
701-667-3232 

2015 CITY OF MANDAN 
GUIDELINES FOR PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS TO 

COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS 

State Guideline Requirements: N.D.C.C. 57-02.2 
l. The governing body of the county, for property outside city limits, or the governing body of the 

city, for property within city limits, must pass a resolution to allow the exemption. 
2. The governing body may limit or impose conditions upon exemptions, including limitations on 

the length of time during which an exemption is allowed, not exceeding five years. The 
requirements must be applied equitably to all applicants. 

3. The exemption is valid for the prescribed period and does not terminate upon the sale or 
exchange of the property. It is transferable to subsequent owners. 

4. The resolution may be rescinded or amended at any time by the governing body of the county 
or city. 

Improvements that Qualify: 
5. Improvements to commercial or residential buildings or structures by renovation, remodeling, 

alteration or an addition to residential may qualify for exemption: 
a. Renovation- Restoring to a previous condition or to a good state of repair. 
b. Remodeling- Changing the plan, form or style of a building, to correct functional 

deficiencies. 
c. Alteration- Changing, modifying or varying; changing materially. 
d. Addition- A structure attached to an existing building to increase its size. 

6. A residential building must be 25 years old or older on the assessment date to qualify for the 
exemption. This provision does not apply to commercial buildings. 

7. The renovation, remodeling or alteration of an apartment or residential building into a 
commercial building or structure is eligible for exemption, whether or not the apartment or 
residential building is 25 years old. However, if a commercial building is renovated, 
remodeled, or altered into an apartment or residential building, the commercial building must 
be 25 years old or older to qualify for the exemption. 

Improvements that Do Not Qualify: 
8. Improvements begun before the governing body passed the resolution do not qualify for 

exemption. 
9. The complete replacement of one building with another building does not qualify for 

exemption. 
10. A separate structure that is not attached to the existing building does not qualify for exemption. 



Procedures: 
11. The property owner files an application with the assessor of the assessment district where the 

property is located. 
12. The assessor determines if the improvements qualify for exemption. The governing body of the 

county or city must approve the exemption before it becomes effective. 
13. If the renovation, remodeling, or alteration or addition qualifies, the last assessment on the 

building prior to the start of making the improvement remains for the prescribed period unless 
equalization or reevaluation of building values is necessary. 

14. The exemption is effective beginning with the first assessment date following the date of 
commencement of making the improvements. 

15. Land values may be changed on any assessment date when justified. 

City of Mandan Policy: 
1. The exemption will be for a maximum of3 years. 
2. Additions to commercial properties could qualify for the exemption upon approval by the city 

commissioners if the project qualifies or meets the criteria requirements. 
3. The property owner must apply for the exemption and be approved with the Assessor's office 

once a complete reassessment is done and final approval made by city commissioners prior to 
the commencement of the improvement. Commencement of the improvement means the start 
of any remodeling, pouring of footings or foundations. The moving of dirt is not considered the 
commencement of improvement. 

4. A permit must be issued prior to commencement of the improvement. 
5. The exemption will not be allowed for repairs due to flood, fire, or tornado damages, or other 

insurable events. 
6. A property may be allowed one exemption per property per assessment year. The first 

remodeling exemption must be complete and expired prior to the approval of the 2nd application 
for the remodeling exemption. This would include Renaissance, store front improvement 
matching funds, or new business exemptions. 

Approved by the Mandan Ciry Commission 
January 20, 2015 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The Planning and Engineering office received a variance 
request to allow a fourth driveway at a commercial business. The following outlines the 
request as compared to code language for consideration.   

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  In this instance, the applicant technically still has 
three lots, but is in the process of combing his three lots into one in order to facilitate a 
building addition and not have to construct firewalls within the building over the lots 
lines. Engineering staff originally flagged the concern because the intended plan after lots 
are combined will have four driveways on one commercial lot. Our city code allows for 
two per lot. However, technically they still have three lots. Because of that, they are not 
technically in violation of that section of code at this time. The sections of code that we 
are concerned with though are section 115-5-3 (c)(2) as highlighted in yellow below and 
115-5-4 (6) as highlighted below in blue; 
 
(c)  Application issuance. The city engineer shall issue a permit if a determination is 
made that: 

(1) The work will be done according to the standard specifications of the city 
for public work of like character; 

(2)  The operation will not unreasonably interfere with vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic, the demand and necessity for parking spaces, and the means of ingress 
and egress to and from the property affected and adjacent properties; and 

(3) The health, welfare and safety of the public will not be unreasonably 
impaired. 
 
(6)  Nonresidential lots. Any lot not used for residential purposes may have a maximum 
of two driveways, each not to exceed 40 feet in width, separated by a distance of not less 
than 24 feet measured at the curbline of each side of the lot that fronts upon a public 
street. 
 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 15, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: 1401 Action Drive SE Driveway Variance 

New Business No. 2 

~ ~ 
CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 2 of 6 
 

Subject:  1401 Action Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 
The crux of the issue that the Engineering Department has is that we see a problem 
developing by having the cul-de-sac boulevard loaded up with driveway concrete. The 
same issue greatly hinders snow removal efforts in other cul-de-sacs throughout the city. 
Granted, in most of those cases those are in residential areas and Public Works has 
mentioned to Engineering that they are less concerned with the complaints side of it in a 
commercial area such as this. Also of note, in those residential cul-de-sacs, those 
driveways are all necessary as the properties’ only point of access.  
 
Below are the variance requirements under section 105-1-12 of city code and city staff 
comments under each in italics.   
 
(1) Variances.  
 
a. On appeal from an order, requirement, decision or determination made by an 
administrative official, the board of adjustment may vary or adjust the strict application of 
any of the requirements of this chapter in the case of an exceptionally irregular, narrow, 
shallow or steep lot or other exceptional physical or topographical condition, by reason of 
which the strict application of the provisions of the chapter would result in unnecessary 
hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the land or building 
involved, but in no other case.  
 
b. No adjustment in the strict application of any provisions of this chapter shall be granted 
by the board of adjustment unless it finds that:  
 

1. There are special circumstances or conditions, fully described in the findings of 
the board, applying to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought, which 
circumstances or conditions are peculiar to such land or building, and do not apply 
generally to land or buildings in the neighborhood, and have not resulted from any act of 
the applicant taken subsequent to the adoption of this chapter, whether in violation of the 
provisions of the chapter, or not;  
 
The engineering department does not see special circumstances or conditions that apply 
to this land or building that would require an additional driveway to properly serve this 
property.  
 

2. For reasons fully set forth in the findings of the board, the circumstances or 
conditions so found are such that the strict application of the provisions of this chapter 
would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of said land or building, and the 
granting of the variance is necessary for the reasonable use of the land or building, and 
that the variance as granted by the board is the minimum variance that will accomplish 
the relief sought by the applicant;  
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 3 of 6 
 

Subject:  1401 Action Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 
Our office does not believe that the denying the request to add another driveway would 
deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of this land or building. Three driveways 
would still be allowed.  
 

3. The grant of the variance will be in harmony with the general purposes and 
intent of this chapter, and not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental 
to the public welfare. 
 
Our office does not believe this request to be in harmony with the general purpose of the 
rules relating to allowable driveways. We are particularly concerned about adequate 
room to put snow within this cul-de-sac. When lot three to the NE develops, it will be that 
much more of a challenge.   
 
In conclusion, the Planning and Engineering Department finds that this request does not 
strictly meet the criteria needed to grant. We believe it is appropriate for the applicant to 
speak of the hardship if not granted however as our department cannot fully and 
accurately express that component.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1) Application 
2) Area Map 
3) Exhibit from applicant showing plan 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All items forwarded to City Attorney for his review.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Deny the variance request because the property does not include 
special circumstances or conditions peculiar to the property, denial does not result in 
“…unnecessary hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the land or 
building…”, and granting the variance is not in harmony with the general purpose and 
intent of the chapter.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to deny the variance request because the property does 
not include special circumstances or conditions peculiar to the property, denial does not 
result in “…unnecessary hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the 
land or building…”, and granting the variance is not in harmony with the general purpose 
and intent of the chapter. 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 4 of 6 
 

Subject:  1401 Action Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 

 
 
 

1CITY OF MANDAN 
--

Development Re-view App Ii cation 
Mlnorl'li!t [$,300), Zone Ctla:nge !$600J I I 

Prcl lmrnairv Plit u-c to 20 or;res j$350l Plan!"!~ Unit Devi!,lopment ($700) 

Pr~llmf.na,ry PIDt mare tl'wm 2i0aores 1$400) Z.One Ch,11n11.e with Minor Plat [$400,) 

Final Pla,t UiP to 20 lot-S 1$350~ Vaation 1$500] 

Final Plait 21 to 40 lot!. ($475-) X V,nianee !SAOO·l I 

fin al Plait mar~ than 40 lots 1$700), 
-

Soe<:i~I us,e Permit {$450) 

Annexatilll'I 1$4S01 Stormwate,r sub.mittll ($3001 

An neica~iori 1ai,tl; Nli'l'lor P!at ($200) I Stormwater 2 • & sub~quent resubmitt.il ($50) 

S!J!TinilJ\' QI Req.ue1t 

Requesting a variance to "Sec. 115-5-4.6 D iveway apron construction standards.~ for a 

pro,posed driveway. 
See attached exh bit. I 

HM affl! 

Tom Weigel (HBSE, Inc.) Chris Houwrna.n (E-C ND Investments, LLC) 

3320 Hamilton ST. Unit 3 

585'03 

809 W Russel St. 
City 

Sioux Falls 

••• Jr 

1!p 

SD 57104 

lif e apijlli ca,u I~ not the cumirit ow11er, tt,e cu~n!nt ow erm st sujbmit a nota,n~ed 5,t;it:eme t au~t,o i11g the 

I a pUc:arttto proce.ed wittnhe rn ue, 

Prop,DHG ~•IV 

l( Cit ETA cc 

1401 Action Drive SE Lots ,4-8, Block 1 of M ldway 141h .Addition 

Commeroial , lndu stria! 
p-, 01e.lU 1t 

Same .Sedion 31 Townshi 

!>,mdSi~ :uililifll ~~lllnt &.JldlinS5F P\r,twld! Pa H 

4 Acr,es 18,450 18,450 

I PrinObmi. 

Chris Houwman -
Date 

Uptlate<:l l/1/Wl.9 

N:\PLANNI G & 2:OiNING\Developme.nt AppUcatloin • hmu:anr 2019_dotii 

- 1 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 5 of 6 
 

Subject:  1401 Action Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 

 
 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
 
Page 6 of 6 
 

Subject:  1401 Action Drive SE Driveway Variance 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Proposed Driveway Exhtbit 

I 
I 

' 

. Ii 
~ } I --------11-------.. ---------------------- J -',.. .... ------r , ~ ii - 1~ : ·_~~~-" 

Lal~ 

? r ., ""~ 
~,\ 

Action Dr. SE 

Exl,s!lng O,i\lewa\r 1#3 

' ,-----+-, -

"\,; \ .. 
\ \, 

I I 

·H•r 
I 

I I , / 
I 

I 

I 

SCALE: 1" = 50' ~-0' 50' 

F'foposed DrlveW<i'Y 114 

\ 

100' 

' ' \ 
' 

\ 

i 
I 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To confirm the selection committee’s qualifications based 
selection of Moore Engineering for consulting engineering related to the Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement project and enter into contract negotiations with them.      

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The local street conditions in this area of town can 
be generally classified as unsatisfactory as determined by a street assessment effort 
completed in 2012. Additionally, there are watermain pipes pushed beyond their useful 
life and storm sewer issues throughout the project area. This area is also challenging in 
the way of ADA compliant access. Though it will not be feasible to address all ADA 
issues because of existing grade and construction limit constraints, we believe we can 
greatly improve accessibility with this project.  
 
Given the observed issues, the project scope will generally be to reconstruct and resurface 
streets and possibly alleys as well as replace the watermain and repair the sanitary and 
storm sewermain components as needed.     
 
The roadways in mind are local so the funds for this project would primarily come special 
assessments. A special assessment district will be created and the typical special 
assessment process will take place along with this design effort. The special assessment 
process will be lead by city staff with help from the consultant.    
 
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was advertised in June and July for engineering 
assistance. The city received seven proposals indicating interest in providing these 
services for the city. A selection committee was created and comprised of Planning and 
Engineering Department staff and Public Works Department staff. After the selection 
committee reviewed the seven proposals, three of the competing firms were brought in 
for interview. After the interview and in evaluating all information available, the selection 
team scored the three firms. After the scores were tabulated, Moore Engineering came out 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 15, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: Selection of Engineering Consultant for the Mid-

Town East Street Improvement Project (SID 215) 
  

 

  

New Business No. 3  

CITY DP 
MAKDAX 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Selection of Engineering Consultant for the Mid-Town East Street Improvement 
Project (SID 215) 
Page 2 of 4 
 
on top with Houston Engineering scoring in a relatively close second place. Therefore, we 
would like to move forward with contract negotiations with Moore Engineering. HDR 
was the third firm invited in for an interview and finished third in scoring after Moore and 
Houston. Note; Scoresheets available upon request.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:     

1) 2012 Pavement Condition Map Zoomed in to Mid-Town East area.  
2) Full Pavement Condition Index Map: 

http://www.cityofmandan.com/vertical/sites/%7B38C3EFDC-F4D8-4D02-9E13-
0987A081A7A4%7D/uploads/Dynatest_PCI.pdf 

3) DRAFT Project Schedule 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct cost at this time. Designing a project of this scope and size 
is expected to cost under, but in some cases near, 10% of the construction. The specific 
limits and scope of project have not been set yet. A preliminary opinion of cost for this 
project is about $6M-$8M before going too far into project assessment.  
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All documents have been forwarded to the City Attorney.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the selection of Moore Engineering, and authorize 
engineering staff to negotiate for the Mid-Town East Street Improvement project (SID 
215) engineering services contract.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to confirm the selection of Moore Engineering, and 
authorize engineering staff to negotiate for the Mid-Town East Street Improvement 
project (SID 215) engineering services contract.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.cityofmandan.com/vertical/sites/%7B38C3EFDC-F4D8-4D02-9E13-0987A081A7A4%7D/uploads/Dynatest_PCI.pdf
http://www.cityofmandan.com/vertical/sites/%7B38C3EFDC-F4D8-4D02-9E13-0987A081A7A4%7D/uploads/Dynatest_PCI.pdf


 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2012 Pavement Condition Index 
(PCI) 

-- Adequate (PCI > 70) 

-- Degraded (55 < PCI < 70) 

-- Unsatisfactory (PCI < 55) 

-- Not Inspected 

•.:, . 

\ 

I 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Selection of Engineering Consultant for the Mid-Town East Street Improvement 
Project (SID 215) 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

DRAFT SCHEDULE 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

IMid-Tow n East (SI ID 215) 

Dat e(.s) Milest one m Task 

2.-Aug Meet t o dis,cuss wh o interview s and invite them t o 

intervi ew. 

15-Aug Conduct interview s 

2.0-Aug Make a ,consultant reoommendation t o City Commis.sion 

3~Sep Agree t o t erms oif ,cont ra ct with ,oonsultant 

Sept ember Survey and ,conditions ass,essment 

October Work on design options and draft ass,essment di.strid to 

pres,ent at optional Publi,c Input meeting (PIM). Adverti s,e 

an optional PIM. 

November Ho,st PIM and s,olicit comment from public Bring to 

Commission as a res,olutio,n oif nece.ssity and st art prot e.st 

period . 

December Det ermin e .suffiieiency oif pro est s and move forward with 

ifinal design iif deemed insuffiieient. 

Spring oif 202.0 Fini.sh design and advertis,e for bid.s. 

Summer /fa II oif 2.02.0 Conduct the maj ority of ,oonstru ction activities. 

2.02.1 Fini.sh s,ome ,construction activities and verify ifinal 

,construction ,cost s for December oif 202.1 st art of special 

a ss,e ssm e nts. 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider selection and permission to enter into 
negotiations for architectural services for Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn 
Park and Heritage Plaza Improvements 
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: A Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was issued on 
June 21, 2019 for architectural services for Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn 
Park and Heritage Plaza Improvements. Three proposals were received; Bartlett & West, 
Al Fitter Architect PC in conjunction with Ciavarella Design Architects & Buffalo 
Design Architects and a proposal from Image Group Architecture & Interiors. 
 
The team that consisted of Mayor Tim Helbling, MMPL Board of Trustees President 
Linda Ehreth, City Administrator Jim Neubauer, Business Development & 
Communications Director Ellen Huber, Program Coordinator Kari Moore and City 
Planner John Van Dyke reviewed the proposals and also participated in the interviews of 
each the proposers. In person interviews were conducted on August 13th and August 14th. 
 
All three groups interviewed did very well and were excited about the opportunity to 
work on this project. The recommendation is to move forward on contract negotiations 
with Bartlett & West. Their work on the Dickinson Public Library renovation and 
expansion along with work on several public gathering spaces hit upon many of the 
points our project entails. 
 
The goal is to bring back a contract to the City Commission for their consideration at the 
September 3, 2019 meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: n/a 
 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 16, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Architectural Services for Morton Mandan Public 

Library, Dykshoorn Park and Heritage Plaza 
Improvements 

New Business No. 4 

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019 
Subject: Architectural Services for Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn Park and 
Heritage Plaza Improvements 
Page 2 of 2 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: to be determined 
 
STAFF IMPACT: to be determined 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: I recommend we move begin contract negotiations with Bartlett 
& West for architectural services for Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn Park 
and Heritage Plaza improvements. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to begin contract negotiations with Bartlett & West for 
architectural services for Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn Park and Heritage 
Plaza improvements. 
 



      
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 1317 
 

 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  
 Section 18-1-7, Possession of Marijuana, and 

Section 18-1-8, Drug Paraphernalia (Marijuana). 
 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances  

 
 
Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 
 
Sec. 18-1-7.  Possession of Marijuana.  
 
 (a) Any person in possession of not more than one-half ounce of marijuana, as that 
term is defined by N.D.C.C. §19-03.1-01, within the City of Mandan, shall be charged with an 
offense. 
 
 (b) Any person in possession of not more than one-half ounce of marijuana, as that 
term is defined by N.D.C.C. §19-03.1-01, within the City of Mandan, shall be charged with an 
offense infraction. 
 
Sec. 18-1-8.  Drug Paraphernalia (Marijuana). 
 
 A person may not use or possess with the intent to use drug paraphernalia to ingest, 
inhale, or otherwise introduce into the human body marijuana in violation of N.D.C.C. ch. 19.  
A person violating this subsection shall be charged with an offense infraction. 
 
 
 

By:______________________________________ 
      Tim Helbling, President  

 Board of City Commissioners  
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Neubauer, City Administrator 
 
 
 
First Consideration:  August 6, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: August 20, 2019 
Publication: September 13, 2019 

Res. & Ord. No. 1 



 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 1318 
 

 An Ordinance to Create Sec. 6-3-1 of 
Article 6 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 

Relating to Dogs and Cats 
 

 
Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners: 
 
 An Ordinance to create Section 6-3-1 of Article 6 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
relating to dogs and cats is hereby created to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 6-3-1. – Public Property Prohibition. 
 
 (a) By resolution, the City Commission may prohibit the presence of dogs and cats in 
or upon any publicly City owned property.   Appropriate signage explaining the prohibition 
must be posted in and upon the publicly City owned property.   
 
 (b) A violation of this section is an infraction.  A violation of this section can be 
ticketed by an officer authorizing a fine of $20.00. 
 
      CITY OF MANDAN 
 
 
      By:____________________________________ 
       Tim Helbling, President 
       Board of City Commissioners 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Neubauer, City Administrator 
 
 
First Consideration:  August 6, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: August 20, 2019 
Publication: September 13, 2019 

Res. & Ord. No. 2 
 



 

RESOLUTION 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Mandan has adopted Ordinance No. 
1318 permitting the restriction of dogs and cats on certain City owned property; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Mandan hereby adopts the following 
policy pursuant to said Ordinance: 

The bringing of a domesticated dog, cat or any other animal or permitting any 
animal to remain on the following city property is prohibited:   Dykshoorn Park 
and Heritage Plaza. 

 Dogs for the visually impaired and other domesticated animals especially 
trained to assist persons with disabilities are excluded from the provisions of this 
resolution when they are accompanied by persons with disabilities for purposes of 
providing such assistance with the appropriate permit.   

       CITY OF MANDAN 

 

      By:______________________________________ 
       Tim Helbling, President 
       Board of City Commissioners 

Res. & Ord. No. 3 



 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 1319 
 

 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  
 Section 24-7-17, Parking of Certain Vehicles and Unattached Trailers Restricted,  

and Section 24-7-18, Restrictions on Consecutive Parking, 
 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances  

 
 
Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 
 
Sec. 24-7-17. - Parking of certain vehicles and unattached trailers restricted. 

(a) It is unlawful for any person to park or leave standing on any public street in a residential 
district, mobile home park or trailer court in the city between sunset and sunrise any attended or 
unattended truck or other motor vehicle licensed for a gross weight in excess of 4,000 10,000 
pounds.  

(f) It is unlawful for any person to park or leave standing any trailer, boat trailers, bumper-pull 
travel trailers, pull-type campers, fifth wheelers, pickup camper, mini-home, house car or motor 
home which exceeds a width of eight 8 feet or a length of 20 feet on any street or alley within 
any residential district, mobile home park or trailer court in the city.  

(g) A person may park or leave standing, directly in front of the registered owner’s residence, 
any trailer, boat trailers, bumper-pull travel trailers, pull-type campers, fifth wheelers pickup 
camper, mini-home, house car or motor home excluding those described in subsection (f),  or 
vehicle described in subsections (e) and (f) of this section on a street for the limited purpose of 
loading and unloading, provided that the period of loading and unloading does not exceed 12 
hours. For the time from May 15th to September 15th. a trailer or vehicle may be parked on a 
street for a period not to exceed 24 hours.  

(h) Any person violating the provisions of this section shall pay a fine of $10.00 $50.00, and any 
police officer of the police department is authorized to impound and remove any vehicle in 
violation of this section in accordance with the provisions of section 24-7-2.  

Sec. 24-7-18. - Restrictions on consecutive parking. 

(c) Any vehicle or motorcycle left parked or standing on any public street or highway for a 
consecutive period longer than allowed in this section shall be considered abandoned, and any 
police officer is authorized to impound and remove any vehicle in violation of this section in 
accordance with the provisions of section 24-7-2.  

(e) No trailer, boat, motor home, bus, camper, fifth-wheel trailer or travel trailer may be parked 
on a public street between December 1 and March 31. The fine for violating this section is 
$15.00 per day. After 48 hours, the vehicle or equipment will be considered abandoned and may 
be towed at the owner's expense.  

Res. & Ord. No. 4 

https://library.municode.com/nd/mandan/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PT2CO_CH24TRVE_ART7STSTPA_S24-7-2PACIPR
https://library.municode.com/nd/mandan/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PT2CO_CH24TRVE_ART7STSTPA_S24-7-2PACIPR


 
By:______________________________________ 

      Tim Helbling, President  
 Board of City Commissioners  

 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Neubauer, City Administrator 
 
 
First Consideration: August 6, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: August 20, 2019 
Publication: September 13, 2019 



 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 1325 

 
 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  

 Sections 4 and 5 of Sec. 24-12-8 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances  
Relating to Violation for Not Carrying Liability Insurance 

 
Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

4. Violation of subsection 1 is an infraction and the sentence imposed must include a fine of 
at least one hundred fifty dollars which may not be suspended.  A person convicted for a 
second or subsequent violation of driving without liability insurance within a three-year 
period must be fined at least three hundred dollars which may not be suspended.   For a 
second or subsequent conviction for a violation of subsection 1 or equivalent ordinance, 
the court shall order the motor vehicle number plates of the motor vehicle owned and 
operated by the person at the time of the violation to be impounded until that person 
provides proof of insurance and a twenty dollar fee to the court.  The person shall 
deliver the number plates to the court without delay at a time certain as ordered by the 
court following the conviction.   The court shall deliver the number plates to the office 
of the police officer that made the arrest and notify the department of the order.  A 
person who does not provide the number plates to the court at the appropriate time is 
guilty of a class B misdemeanor. 

5. Upon conviction for a violation of subsection 1 or equivalent ordinance, the person who 
has been convicted shall provide proof of motor vehicle liability insurance to the 
department in the form of a written or electronically transmitted certificate from an 
insurance carrier authorized to do business in this state.  This proof must be provided for 
a period of three one years and kept on file with the department.   If the person fails to 
provide this information, the department shall suspend that person’s driving privileges 
and may not issue or renew that person’s operator’s license unless that person provides 
proof of insurance.   

 
By:_______________________________________ 

      Tim Helbling, President, Board of  
 City Commissioners  

Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Neubauer, City Administrator 
 
First Consideration:  August 20, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: September 3, 2019 
Publication: September 17, 2019 

Res. & Ord. No. 5 


	Agenda
	Minutes
	PH1 Crematoriums
	PH2 Ord. 1321 Midway 14th Addt. 1st Replat
	PH3 Variance Midway 14th
	PH4 Ord. 1322 zoning dist. amendment Scott's Acres
	PH5 Ord. 1323 zoning dist. amendment Meadow Ridge 4
	PH6 Ord. 1324 zoning dist. amendment Meadow Ridge 5
	B1 Award of bids for demo of 210 5th St NW
	C2 Liquor License Harvest Catering
	C3 Closing sale of 100 5th St. NW
	C4 Municipal Court budget amendment
	C5 Bank of ND
	C6 Mandan Golden Age Club car show
	C7 90 minute parking zone
	C8 30" Sunset Reservoir Transmission Line
	OB1 Lakewood Dr. driveway variance
	NB1 Tax Exemption for improvements at Midway Lanes
	NB2 1401 Action Dr. driveway variance
	NB3 Mid-Town E. St. Imp. Project
	NB4 MMPL architectural services
	R&O1 Ord. 1317 Possession of marijuana
	R&O2 Ord. 1318 Dogs & Cats
	R&O3 Resolution Dogs & Cats in Dykshoorn Park & Heritage Plaza
	R&O4 Ord. 1319 Restrictions on consecutive parking
	R&O5 Ord. 1325 Liability Insurance



